
Borough of Chalfont 
Council Meeting Agenda 

December 13, 2021 
Page 1 of 3 

CALL TO ORDER 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

ROLL CALL  
□ Mayor Brian Wallace     □ Michael Beebie     □ Tracey Bowen     □ John Engel     □ Mark Glidden
□ Marilyn Jacobson     □ Michael Kelly     □ Mitchell Meyerson     □ Jia Walia, Junior Council Member

□ Borough Manager, Shawn Curran    □ Borough Secretary, Dawn Tremmel    □ Michael Meginniss from Begley,
Carlin & Mandio    □ Captain Robert Milligan from CBRPD

Announcement:  This meeting is being recorded. 

CHANGES, ADDITIONS, DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 

PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS 

CONSENT AGENDA 
Dispense with the reading of the minutes from the November 8, 2021 Council Meeting with disbursements 
from the General Fund of $170,909.30 for the month of November.  The financial report will be filed for audit. 
(pages 1-7) 

SPECIAL ITEMS 
President’s Message from John Engel. 

COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS 
Mayor’s Report – Brian Wallace 
Central Bucks Regional Police Commission – Brian Wallace (page 8) 
Public Works Committee – Marilyn Jacobson (page 9) 
Facilities Committee –  
Utilities Committee – Mitchell Meyerson 
Finance Committee –  John Engel 
Junior Council Report – Jia Walia 

STAFF REPORTS 
Manager’s Report – Shawn Curran 
Engineer’s Report – Pat DiGangi, CKS Engineers (pages 10-16) 
Solicitor’s Report – Mike Meginniss, Begley, Carlin & Mandio (pages 17-18) 
Police Report – Did not arrive in time for the packet. 
Public Works Report – Pat Hallman (page 19) 
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MONTHLY REPORTS 
Chalfont EMS; October Call Report (pages 20-21)   
Chalfont EMS; 2019 and 2020 Audit (pages 22-37)   
Chalfont Chemical Fire Company; October & November Chief’s Report (pages 38-57) 
 

ACTION ITEMS 

1. Consideration of Resolution No. 2021-10; a resolution fixing the tax rate for the 2022 fiscal year. 
(pages 58-59) 

 
 

 
2. Consideration of Resolution No. 2021-11; adoption of 2022 Budget for Chalfont Borough, noting no 

tax increase for 2022.  (pages 60-64) 
 

 
 

3. Consideration of Resolution No. 2021-12; adoption of the Bucks County 2021 Hazard Mitigation Plan.  
(page 65) 

 
 

 
4. Consideration to approve advertisement of 2022 Council, Planning Commission, HARB, and ZHB 

meeting dates.  (page 66) 
 

 
 

5. Consideration to approve Certificate of Appropriateness for HARB; application #21-07. (pages 67-73) 
 
 

 
 

 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
 
CORRESPONDENCE/INFORMATION 
Chalfont-New Britain Township Joint Sewage Authority Annual Financial Report and DCED Report for fiscal year 
ending May 31, 2021. (pages 74-110) 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
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ANNOUNCEMENTS 
Borough Secretary, Dawn Tremmel, entered Chalfont Borough in PSAB’s 2021 Borough News Municipal Website 
Contest and won first place recognition in the 2,501 to 5,000 population category. 

MEETINGS 

Board or Commission Day of 
Week 

Date Time Venue 
(Venues subject to change) 

Chalfont Planning Commission Wednesday Dec. 15  7:00 PM 40 N. Main St., Chalfont 

Police Commission Finance Committee 
(held only if needed) 

Thursday Dec. 16 6:00 PM CBRPD HQ, 229 N. Broad 
St., Doylestown Borough 

Police Commission, Ribbon Cutting Ceremony Tuesday Dec. 21 6:00 PM CBRPD HQ, 229 N. Broad 
St., Doylestown Borough 

Police Commission Tuesday Dec. 21 7:00 PM CBRPD HQ, 229 N. Broad 
St., Doylestown Borough 

Chalfont Zoning Hearing Board Wednesday Dec. 22 7:00 PM 40 N. Main St., Chalfont 

Chalfont Borough Council Reorg Meeting Monday Jan.3 8:00 PM 40 N. Main St., Chalfont 

Chalfont HARB Tuesday Jan. 4 7:00 PM 40 N. Main St., Chalfont 

Chalfont Borough Council Regular Meeting Monday Jan. 17 7:00 PM 40 N. Main St., Chalfont 

EXECUTIVE SESSION to discuss a personnel matter. 

ADJOURNMENT 
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Tonight’s Chalfont Borough Council meeting was held at Borough Hall, 40 N. Main Street.  The public was 
invited to participate in person at Borough Hall.   

Council President John Engel called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM and announced that tonight’s meeting 
will be recorded.  The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.  

ROLL CALL 
Council Members present:  Michael Beebie, Tracey Bowen, John Engel, Mark Glidden, Marilyn Jacobson, 
Michael Kelly, and Mitchell Meyerson.  A quorum was established.  Mayor Brian Wallace and Junior Council 
Person Jia Walia were also present.     

Others present:   Borough Manager Shawn Curran, Borough Secretary Dawn Tremmel, Borough Solicitor Mike 
Meginniss from Begley, Carlin & Mandio, Borough Finance Director Darrell Card, and Captain R. Milligan from 
CBRPD. 

Others absent:  Pat DiGangi from CKS Engineering, and Rich O’Brien from Keystone Municipal Services. 

CHANGES, ADDITIONS, DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
President Engel noted that he would like to make a change to the agenda to include an update on the latest 
Financial Advisory Committee meeting as it relates to the 2022 Budget presentation that is scheduled to take 
place this evening before the vote is taken on advertising the Borough’s Proposed Budget. 

PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS 
None. 

CONSENT AGENDA 
Mr. Glidden made a motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes from the October 8, 2021 Council 
meeting and report of disbursements from the General Fund in the amount of $268,775.14 for the month of 
October.  The financial report will be filed for audit.  The motion was seconded by Ms. Jacobson and it was 
approved unanimously 7-0 with a voice vote by all members present. 

SPECIAL ITEMS 
Presentation of 2022 Proposed Budget 

President Engel noted the Borough Finance Committee report is in the packet and that the Committee 
(comprised of Vice President Bowen, Mr. Glidden and President Engel), along with Borough staff met multiple 
times and reviewed the proposed 2022 Budget.  The Committee unanimously recommends adopting the 
proposed 2022 Budget.  Mr. Curran then gave a brief overview of the Budget Message followed by a brief 
summary of the proposed Budget noting there is no proposed tax increase for 2022.  The General Fund 
Budget for 2022 is $2,815,281, while the Capital Fund proposes $1,513,893 in capital projects for 2022.  Mr. 
Beebie commented that he appreciated the effort put forth in preparing the Budget.  Mr. Meyerson asked if 
the hiring of any full-time officers for CBRPD in 2022 was reflected in the Borough’s proposed Budget. 
President Engel replied that the 2022 CBRPD Budget does not include any staff increases, nor do they 
anticipate any staff expansion of full-time officers in 2022, therefore no money has been allocated for such 
an endeavor in the Borough’s proposed 2022 Budget either.  Mr. Meyerson asked if the maintenance on 
Borough-owned buildings is being monitored to prevent any large unexpected costs and President Engel 
noted those factors are kept in mind with future year’s budget projections and noted that Borough staff does 
their job in monitoring all the Borough-owned facilities, which helps prevent unexpected large expenses.  Ms. 
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Jacobson asked Mr. Card why the projected Earned Income Tax estimate for 2022 is down 6.38% from this 
year.  Mr. Card stated that he based the EIT projection on the average EIT amounts collected from the 
previous three years.  Ms. Jacobson asked if that projected amount should be higher considering all the new 
developments in the Borough.  Mr. Card and Mr. Curran both concurred that the Borough doesn’t usually 
see an immediate increase in EIT from new developments and notes that it takes a few years before those 
types of situations result in tangible increases to actual EIT collected.  Mr. Glidden thanked Mr. Curran and 
Mr. Card for their work on the Budget.  Mayor Wallace asked about the $1.57M included in the Capital Budget 
for the CBRPD HQ building and if that was going to be the final amount that Chalfont would be paying.  Mr. 
Curran stated that Chalfont Borough is likely going to be putting out more than the $1.57M amount up front, 
but then will get some funds reimbursed after the expected Redevelopment Assistance Capital Program 
(RACP) Grant money (that was awarded to Doylestown Borough) has been received and disbursed by 
Doylestown Borough. 

Vice President Bowen made a motion to authorize the Borough Solicitor to advertise the proposed 2022 
Borough Budget as presented.  Ms. Jacobson seconded the motion and it was approved unanimously 7-0 
with a voice vote. 

COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS: 

MAYOR’S REPORT 
Mayor Wallace stated that he occasionally receives newsletters from MARS and noted they have committed 
to trying to become carbon-free by 2050. 

CENTRAL BUCKS REGIONAL POLICE COMMISSION REPORT 
There was a written report included in this month’s council packet.  Mayor Wallace stated that tonight council 
will be voting on Ordinance No. 464 regarding warrantless arrests along with taking a vote on the proposed 
2022 CBRPD Budget.  He noted the police building had a punch date set for November 12, 2021, with furniture 
to begin being delivered on November 15, 2021, but those dates are subject to change due to possible 
unforeseen delivery/supply issues.  Mayor Wallace noted the ribbon cutting is tentatively scheduled for 
November 22, 2021, but that date would likely be moved to sometime in December.  Mayor Wallace noted 
CBRPD received a grant for virtual reality training in de-escalation techniques and that other surrounding 
police departments will also share in this training which should begin sometime in January. 

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE REPORT 
Ms. Jacobson stated the PWC report is in the packet.  She also noted the benches for the gazebo in Krupp 
Park are near completion and awaiting installation.  The gazebo, the benches inside of it, and the surrounding 
landscaping are a much appreciated gift from the Cordell family.  Ms. Jacobson also noted that the 2022 
Bucks 5K Series has begun its 2022 planning.  

FACILITIES COMMITTEE REPORT 
Mr. Beebie noted there was nothing to report this month. 

UTILITIES COMMITTEE REPORT 
Mr. Meyerson thanked President Engel for the written outline of the duties of the Utilities Committee that 
he requested at last month’s council meeting.  He also noted there would be a vote tonight on the extension 
of the current residential trash hauler contract. 
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FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT  
President Engel noted the Finance Committee report is in the packet and reiterated that the Committee is 
unanimously recommending the adoption of the Borough’s proposed 2022 Budget. 

JUNIOR COUNCIL REPORT 
Ms. Walia had nothing to report. 

STAFF REPORTS: 

MANAGER’S REPORT 
Mr. Curran stated that on November 4, 2021 he attended a Chamber of Commerce meeting in Lansdale 
where there were a few other local municipalities also in attendance.  When asked, he stated the highlight 
of the meeting was the news about a lot of land purchases in Hatfield Twp. for the purpose of constructing 
large warehouses in addition to news of planned road improvements from the turnpike to Rt. 309. 

ENGINEER’S REPORT 
President Engel noted the report is in the packet. 

CODE AND ZONING REPORT 
There is no report this month. 

SOLICITOR’S REPORT 
Mr. Meginniss noted the Solicitor’s Report is in the packet. 

POLICE REPORT 
Captain Milligan noted the report is in the packet.  President Engel noted at the last Police Finance Committee 
meeting there was mention of a four-fold increase in phone fraud and internet fraud scams, which is a 
disturbing upward trend. 

PUBLIC WORKS REPORT 
President Engel noted the Public Works Report is in the packet.  He expressed his thanks to the Public Works 
crew for their efforts this past month. 

MONTHLY REPORTS 
President Engel stated the Chalfont Fire Co. and EMS reports are in the packet and noted they have been very 
busy this year. 

ACTION ITEMS 

1. Consideration to approve the 2022 Central Bucks Regional Police Budget.
Ms. Jacobson made a motion to approve the 2022 Central Bucks Regional Police Budget.  Mr. Beebie
seconded the motion.  President Engel stated the Police Commission Finance Committee went over
the proposed Budget meticulously and said it was a responsible and accurate representation of the
CBRPD’s projected upcoming year.  President Engel then called for a voice vote, and the motion was
approved unanimously 7-0.

3



Chalfont Borough Council Meeting Minutes 
Monday, November 8, 2021 

Page 4 of 6 

2. Second Reading of Ordinance No. 464; an ordinance regarding warrantless arrests for summary
offenses.
Mr. Glidden made a motion to approve Ordinance No. 464 of the Borough of Chalfont, Bucks County,
Pennsylvania, creating a chapter entitled, “Public Safety,” under General Legislation, which shall
provide guidelines and procedures for warrantless arrests in Chalfont Borough.  Ms. Jacobson
seconded the motion.  Mr. Meginniss stated this ordinance was duly advertised in the appropriate
ways following the last council meeting and is ready for a vote this evening.  President Engel called
for a roll call vote and the motion was approved unanimously 7-0.

Michael Beebie, yes; Tracey Bowen, yes; John Engel, yes; Mark Glidden, yes; Mike Kelly, yes; Marilyn 
Jacobson, yes; Mitchell Meyerson, yes. 

3. Consideration of Resolution No. 2021-09; a resolution authorizing the Borough Manager to send a
letter to Waste Management, formerly Advanced Disposal, for notification of the Borough’s intent
to extend the trash contract into the final extension year at an annual rate of $258.11 for regular
service customers and $214.49 for senior citizens.
Mr. Meyerson made a motion to approve Resolution No. 2021-09.  Mr. Beebie seconded the motion.

There was a general discussion among various council members regarding the frustration over the 
problematic service issues with WM.  Ms. Tremmel noted that based on feedback from customer’s 
experiences with other trash companies, there doesn’t seem to be any one trash hauler that has an 
outstanding reputation for service and reliability.  There was further discussion among council 
regarding some of the current challenges that trash companies are facing including global recycling 
issues and industry staffing issues as a result of the pandemic.  President Engel called for a vote and 
the motion passed unanimously 7-0 with a roll call vote. 

Michael Beebie, yes; Tracey Bowen, yes; John Engel, yes; Mark Glidden, yes; Mike Kelly, yes; Marilyn 
Jacobson, yes; Mitchell Meyerson, yes. 

4. Consideration of Ordinance No. 465; an ordinance of the Borough of Chalfont, Bucks County, to
authorize the incurrence of non-electoral, general obligation debt by the Borough of Chalfont in
the aggregate principal amount of $975,000.00.  (Please note:  The Debt Act supersedes other
ordinance requirements. Advertising has been fulfilled and one reading of the ordinance is all that is
necessary for a vote to proceed.)
Mr. Curran noted this ordinance is regarding the Borough securing a loan which will cover the
additional funding needed to cover the construction of the CBRPD building.  The Borough initially took
out a loan in the amount of $1.2M for the police building and needs an additional $325K to cover the
Borough’s share.  This loan would also cover the $350K needed for the stormwater management
project in the Lindenfield development.  There is also another $300K earmarked in the loan for a
possible property acquisition.  The loan rates are currently favorable, so staff thinks it’s prudent to
secure the loan now.  The loan itself will be a fixed rate loan, but with regards to the $300K portion
earmarked for the property acquisition, the rate for those funds would be variable up until settlement
day, and at that time it would be converted to a fixed rate.  The interest incurred in the two-three
months that would come to pass during the property acquisition phase would amount to about $188
per month.  If the property acquisition falls through for any reason, the Borough would return the
$300K to the bank and the only loss would be the roughly $188 per month in interest for however
many months the Borough was in possession of the money.  Mr. Meyerson stated he objects to the
$300K portion of the loan for the acquisition of private property and does not feel the Borough should
be purchasing any private property unless it’s needed for an emergency situation.
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Mr. Beebie made a motion to approve Ordinance No. 465.  Ms. Jacobson seconded the motion and it 
passed 6-1 with a roll call vote. 

Michael Beebie, yes; Tracey Bowen, yes; John Engel, yes; Mark Glidden, yes; Mike Kelly, yes; Marilyn 
Jacobson, yes; Mitchell Meyerson, no. 

5. Consideration of changing curb replacement payment policy.
Mr. Meyerson made a motion to change Borough Council’s standard policy to no longer require
Borough residents to individually pay direct costs associated with curb improvements when
improvements are necessitated due to public projects.  Ms. Jacobson seconded the motion.

Mr. Meyerson stated he felt a lot of curb damage was probably a result of snow plows and other 
delivery vehicles and not the fault of individual home owners.  He feels the best thing for the public 
is to switch the payment policy from individuals bearing the cost to the Borough (all taxpayers) 
bearing the cost.  Mr. Meginniss then noted that with regard to President Engel and Mr. Beebie 
possibly benefitting from this policy change in the next year, a memorandum was sent to council 
stating the law is very clear that a recusal is not required just because a council member might benefit 
from this policy change at some time in the future.  Mayor Wallace stated he felt the policy shouldn’t 
be changed because any residents, like himself, who live along a state-owned road would not see 
the monetary benefit of this policy change.  President Engel stated he would like to retract his offer 
of recusal made at the last council meeting based on the Borough Solicitor’s memorandum and 
advice this evening.  Ms. Jacobson said this issue has been discussed quite a bit in the streets 
meetings.  She then commented that now seems like the right time to change the policy, especially 
since there isn’t a tax increase this year.  President Engel noted there is a lot of staff time devoted to 
the billing and collection process of residents paying for individual curb work and the cost of liens is 
born by the Borough as well, and making this policy change would simplify that process.  He stated 
that a vote is not required to change this policy, but hopes that by council taking a vote, that it will 
send a message to future councils in the hope that the new policy change will stay in place for an 
extended period of time.  Ms. Bowen then stated again this month, as she did last month, that she 
appreciates the spirit in which this policy change is intended, but is against the policy change due to 
concerns that it will hinder paving efforts by passing on this additional cost to the Borough (all 
taxpayers) instead of the individual homeowner.  Her concern is that future budgets may be under 
more stress and then money that should be intended for road maintenance and paving will instead 
be diverted to pay for curbing, and for this reason, she will not be voting in favor of this policy change. 
Mr. Beebie then remarked that like Mr. Engel, he will not be recusing himself this evening on this 
policy vote due to the advice provided by the Borough Solicitor.  Mr. Engel then pointed out that 
according the State Code, if council member(s) are not deemed by the Solicitor to have a true conflict 
of interest on a matter, then according to State Code, council member(s) are required to vote. 

President Engel called for a voice vote and the motion passed 6-1 with Ms. Bowen dissenting. 

6. Consideration to appoint Robert Milligan to the Chalfont Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Board.
Mr. Beebie made a motion to appoint Robert Milligan to the Chalfont EMS Board.  Ms. Jacobson
seconded the motion and it was passed unanimously 7-0 with a voice vote.
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President Engel thanked Mr. Milligan for his volunteer service to the Borough and stated that records 
would be checked to see what the length of term will be for this position and let him know.  Mr. 
Curran informed Mr. Milligan that the next Chalfont EMS meeting is on Wednesday, November 10, 
2021, at 5:00 PM and he can attend in his place if Mr. Milligan isn’t available on such short notice. 

OLD BUSINESS 
None. 

NEW BUSINESS 
None. 

CORRESPONDENCE/INFORMATION 
2020 Liquid Fuels Audit Report is in the packet.  President Engel stated the auditor found no issues in the 
management of liquid fuels funds.  President Engel thanked Mr. Card for his work as the Borough’s Finance 
Director. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
None. 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 
President Engel reminded everyone that Veterans Day is this coming Thursday and thanked veterans for their 
service.  Ms. Jacobson asked if flags would be put out and Mr. Curran noted the Lions Club would be putting 
flags out this year.  President Engel announced the following upcoming meetings: 

MEETINGS

Board or Commission Day of 
Week 

Date Time Venue 
(Venues subject to change) 

Police Commission Finance 
Committee (held only if needed) 

Thursday Nov. 18 6:00 PM Doylestown Borough Hall, 
Conf. Rm., 57 W. Court St. 

Chalfont Planning Commission Monday Nov. 22 7:00 PM 40 N. Main St., Chalfont 

Chalfont Zoning Hearing Board Wednesday Nov. 24 7:00 PM 40 N. Main St., Chalfont 

Police Commission Monday Nov. 22 7:00 PM New Britain Borough, 
Burkart Hall, 56 Keeley Ave. 

Chalfont HARB Monday Dec. 6 7:00 PM 40 N. Main St., Chalfont 

Chalfont Borough Council Monday Dec. 13 7:00 PM 40 N. Main St., Chalfont 

ADJOURNMENT 
President Engel noted there was no other Borough business to discuss.  He made a motion to adjourn the 
meeting at 7:59 PM without objection. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Dawn M. Tremmel 
Borough Secretary 
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Chalfont Borough

November 30, 2021

List of Borough Accounts

General Fund Profit and Loss Statement 11/30/2021 Year-to-date

Total Income $180,950.39 $2,951,350.49

Total Expenses ($170,909.30) ($2,431,853.49)

Surplus / (Deficit) $10,041.09 $519,497.00

General Fund Bank Account Beginning Balance 10/31/2021 $876,150.53

Outstanding items consist of expenses not paid Deposits $177,986.10

in the expenses current month, Expenses ($132,570.66)

including transfers to and from other accts Payroll ($38,266.40)

Outstanding items $33,421.31

Ending Balance 11/30/2021 $916,720.88

Tax Account Beginning Balance 10/31/2021 $0.00

Borough $1,852.52

Borough Debt Service $370.51

County, Fire & EMS $3,781.34

Distributions ($6,004.37)

Ending Balance 11/30/2021 $0.00

Debt Service Fund Beginning Balance 10/31/2021 $28,455.06

2016 Avant (60 payments, 04/2017-03/2022) Deposits/Net Activity $1,011.73

2014 Note-101 N. Main St Purchase (07/2014-07/2034) Interest $0.00

2018 Note-101 N. Main St. Construction (10/2019-10/2037) Disbursements ($4,225.32)

2019 Note-CBRPD Building Construction (10/2019-10/2039) Ending Balance 11/30/2021 $25,241.47

Recreation Fund Beginning Balance 10/31/2021 $150,069.68

This is for the 5K Race Deposits/Net Activity $0.00

park maintenance Interest $24.59

Disbursements ($590.50)

Ending Balance 11/30/2021 $149,503.77

Capital Fund Beginning Balance 10/31/2021 $237,145.72

proceeds from $1.2M loan for CBRPD Building Deposits $0.00

General Fund Transfer Interest $3.95

CBRPD Building Expenses Disbursements ($91,684.23)

Capital Expenses Ending Balance 11/30/2021 $145,465.44

Liquid Fuels Fund Beginning Balance 10/31/2021 $178,387.62

liquid fuels deposit Deposits 

Disbursements Interest $28.88

Traffic Signal Maintenance Disbursements ($2,705.64)

2017 International (60 payments, 11/2017-10/2022) Ending Balance 11/30/2021 $175,710.86

MTD YTD

Stifel, Nicolaus & Co.  - Water Reserve Fund 1 Beginning Balance 10/31/2021 $4,211,176.00 $4,267,856.90

Change in Value $21,064.73 ($107,063.80)

Interest $7,111.21 $78,558.84

Transfer to General Fund

Transfer to Reserve 2

Ending Balance 11/30/2021 $4,239,351.94 $4,239,351.94

MTD YTD

Stifel, Nicolaus & Co.  - Water Reserve Fund 2 Beginning Balance 10/31/2021 $44,660.52 $44,655.08

Change in Value

Interest $0.38 $5.82

Deposit - 10%

Transfer to General Fund

Ending Balance 11/30/2021 $44,660.90 $44,660.90
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November 2021 CBRPD Commission Meeting 

Chalfont Members:  Brian Wallace, John Engel, Marilyn Jacobson 

 HQ Building:  The Final Punch List walk-through with the contractor set for December 8th.

Furniture delivery set for December 13th.

 Passed Resolution 2021-01:  The resolution establishes the cost of Police Supervision

Service of the Police and Fire Police.  The amounts include overtime wage for police and

hourly rate for fire police, plus fringe benefits and a $2 service charge.

 Ribbon Cutting:  December 21st @ 6p.m.   Commissioners meeting @ 7p.m.
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November 2021 Public Works Committee Streets/Parks 

Members:  Marilyn Jacobson, Michael Kelly, Mark Glidden, Shawn Curran 

Projects Update: 

 Benches in David Cordell Gazebo in Krupp Park have been designed, fabricated and installed by

the Cordell Family.

 Butler Avenue resurfaced.

 AQUA PA water main replacement completed on Bristol road and paving restored.

 AQUA PA water main replacement completed on Lilac Lane and paving being restored.

 AQUA PA will replace water lines on Wisler Ave., Chestnut and Church Streets within the next

twelve months.  Aqua will then resurface Wisler Ave. and Church Street and half of Chestnut

Street.

 Policy changed; residents will no longer pay for curb and driveway depression replacements when

the Borough resurfaces a Borough-owned street.  Residents will continue to be responsible for the

costs of sidewalk and driveway apron replacements.

 Considering sidewalk completions along North Main St. from Hellberg Ave. to West Peace Valley

Road.

 In talks with PennDOT to construct the Bristol Road Extension sooner than the 2032 date.

 Chalfont Challenge 5K Series, planning for 2022 is underway.

2022 Budget Items: 

 Diseased tree removal in parks.

 2022 Stormwater replacement construction for Lindenfield (Jasen Dr., Renee Circle and Jana

Circle) partially funded by the H2O Grant.

 Resurfacing and curb replacement of Chestnut Street.  AQUA PA reimburses to the center line of

the street impacted by water line replacement.

 Trail construction connecting Patriots Place and Chestnut Street Park to the Lindenfield Parkway

pedestrian bridge using the funds from the Greenways, Trails and Recreation Program.

 Chalfont Challenge 5K scheduled for June 4th, and Chalfont Night scheduled for September 10th.

Grants: 

 H2O PA Program Grant:  $300,000 awarded for the replacement of stormwater facilities in

Lindenfield.  The cost of replacement is estimated to be $1,560,000.

 PA DCED Greenways, Trails and Recreation Program:  $287,500 awarded for three of four

sections of the Northern Neshaminy Greenway Trail.  Grant in the amount of $250,000 with a

15% match of $37,500.
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CHALFONT BOROUGH PROJECTS 
ENGINEER’S STATUS REPORT 
Last Updated December 3, 2021 

CKS Engineers, Inc. Page 1 of 7 4300-51 Chalfont Eng. Status Report December 2021 

FILE NO. PROJECT NAME SCOPE CURRENT STATUS NEXT ACTION 

BOROUGH PROJECTS 

4300-65 NPDES Stormwater 
Permit for Municipal 
Separate Storm Sewer 
Systems (MS4s) 

Permit required of MS4s (which the 
Borough is considered), which 
requires Borough to develop, 
implement and enforce a 
stormwater management program to 
reduce the discharge of pollutants to 
their storm sewer system. 

CKS made a presentation on the program, current status, 
and upcoming requirements at the September 13, 2016 
Council Meeting.  Upcoming requirements include a NOI 
(permit application) be submitted by 9/16/17 for the next 
five-year period; municipalities having a TMDL must apply 
for an Individual Permit instead of a General Permit; and 
TMDL Strategy Plans and Pollution Reduction Plans (PRP) 
are required for the following watershed requirements: 

- Neshaminy Creek:  TMDL for Sediment, PRP for Total
Phosphorus and Appendix B for Pathogens;

- West Branch Neshaminy Creek:  PRP for Total
Phosphorus

CKS provided update to Council concerning NOI 
Preparation at the July 11, 2017 meeting.  Borough 
advertised TMDL and PRP plans for public comment. CKS 
completed renewal application, PRP and TMDL plans and 
submitted the documents to PADEP on September 11, 
2017. Comments from PADEP have been received on the 
TMDL and PRP Plans. Those comments were in a letter 
dated June 7, 2018. CKS has addressed those comments. 
The revised TMDL Strategy Plan and PRP have been 
approved by Borough Council and the public comment 
period concluded February 14, 2019. CKS has sent the 
revised plan to PADEP. The permit was issued on October 
9, 2020 and is effective November 1, 2020. The permit 
expires October 31, 2025. Mary Stover of CKS met with 
Shawn and Pat Hallman on several occasions to review new 
permit requirements; annual measures to be addressed; 
and BMPs proposed to be implemented. The first BMP is 
the retrofit of the Birchwood Drive detention basin. 

CKS completed the Borough’s Annual Progress Report (July 
2020 – June 2021) and submitted it to PADEP on 
September 28, 2021.  
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4300-161 2021 Roadway Program Mill and overlay of Lilac Lane from 
Bristol Road to Hibiscus Drive. 
Project is coordinated with Aqua 
PA’s water main replacement work. 

CKS completed a contract for bidding. Bids were received 
June 8, 2021. James D. Morrissey, Inc. (JDM) was the low 
bidder with a bid of $161,057.00. Borough Council voted to 
reject all bids at their meeting on July 12, 2021. This work 
will now be incorporated into the Borough’s storm sewer 
replacement project and re-bid. 

4409 

(4300-137) 

Storm Sewer 
Replacement Project – 
Lindenfield Area 

Replacement of deteriorated 
corrugated metal pipe (CMP) storm 
sewer in various locations 
throughout the Lindenfield 
neighborhood. 

The Borough received an H2O grant in the amount of 
$300,000 (9/3/20) for the replacement of CMP storm 
sewers. The grant match is 50%; therefore, the minimum 
project cost must be $450,000 to receive full funding. 
Completion dated for grant is June 30, 2023. CKS had a 
kick-off meeting with Manager and Finance Director on June 
25th to begin the design. CKS has begun preparing design. 

4410 Northern Neshaminy 
Greenway Trail Project 

2,650 lf of 8-ft.-wide bituminous trail 
extending along the North Branch of 
the Neshaminy Creek and 
connecting the Patriot Place, 
Lindenfield, and Chestnut Street 
neighborhoods. 

The Borough received a Greenways, Trails, and Recreation 
Program (GTRP) grant in the amount of $249,971 from the 
DCED to complete the project. The total project cost is 
estimated at $294,084. CKS has been authorized to begin 
the design. Completion deadline for the grant is June 30, 
2024. 

DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS 

4323 Showalter - Mill Building 
Land Development  

Land Development Application Revised plans have been submitted for the project with a 
date of October 19, 2006; last revised January 2, 2008. 
CKS completed a review of those plans and issued a letter 
dated January 7, 2008 (6th review).  Applicant appeared 
before Zoning Hearing Board on July 19, 2007 and received 
several variances for relief from ZO setback requirements 
and a Special Exception to permit the relocation of a 
sanitary sewer line in a floodplain.  Borough Council 
granted Conditional Preliminary Plan Approval for the 
project on January 8, 2008. 

Developer to address 
comments in CKS 
letter dated January 
7, 2008. 
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4405 Chalfont Crossing Land 
Development  

Development of the southwest 
corner of Bristol Road and Route 
202. Project proposes 61
townhome units.  Project is located
in the Borough’s newly adopted
Butler Avenue Gateway Commercial
Overlay Zoning District.

The Developer presented the project at the Planning 
Commission on January 28, 2019 and Council on February 12, 
2019 to receive feedback on the project plus present an 
alternate proposal involving 62 homes with no commercial 
space. It appears the all-residential alternative is what the 
Developer is now proposing. An amendment to the Overlay 
Ordinance has been drafted to permit an all-residential 
alternative. The Ordinance amendment was considered by the 
PC at their meeting on May 20, 2019 and June 24, 2019, and 
Council approved the ordinance amendment on June 11, 2019. 
A set of revised plans proposing 61 townhomes was submitted, 
dated November 15, 2018, last revised July 29, 2019. CKS 
completed a review of those plans and issued a letter dated 
August 21, 2019, with comments. The Borough Planning 
Commission recommended conditional final approval of the 
plans at their August 26, 2019 meeting. Council conditionally 
approved the Land Development proposal at their meeting on 
November 12, 2019. The NPDES Stormwater Permit has been 
issued for the project. PennDOT approved the HOP application 
and the Traffic Signal Plans for the project. Revised plans were 
submitted, dated last revised October 26, 2020, addressing the 
conditions of approval as well as CKS’s prior reviews. CKS 
completed a review of those plans and issued a letter dated 
November 3, 2020 indicating the plans were acceptable. A 
revised construction escrow tabulation was issued by CKS on 
November 4, 2020. Development agreements have been 
executed. Plans to be recorded. Easements associated with the 
off-site sidewalk to be secured. A pre-construction meeting was 
held December 11, 2020. Construction has started. Utilities, 
including storm sewer construction, are being performed. Home 
building construction has begun. 
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4389 Belle Property (Moser 
Group) Apartment 
Development 

Project proposes to redevelop the 
former Chesterfield Academy 
School site by converting existing 
building into 4 multiplex apartments 
and 18 townhomes. (Project 
formerly proposed 25 garden 
apartments and 4 townhouses) 

The project was considered by Borough Council on July 12, 
2016 and the Council granted conditional approval. Revised 
plans addressing the Conditions of Approval and CKS’s 
prior review have been submitted. These plans are dated 
November 24, 2015, last revised September 20, 2018. CKS 
completed a review of the plans and the conditions of 
approval have been addressed along with CKS’s prior 
comments. 

Development Agreements have been executed. A 
preconstruction meeting was conducted June 17, 2019. The 
easement for trail and storm sewer has been secured from 
adjacent Aquarium Pharmaceuticals and the $10,000 
fee-in-lieu of recreation has been paid to the Borough. Site 
and building construction continue. 

A pre-paving punch list inspection has been requested by 
the Developer (9/24/21 email). Interior roads have been 
overlayed. Landscaping and restoration nearly complete. 
CKS to issue a final punch list. 
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4394 Patriot Station at Chalfont 
(131 North Main Street)  

Land Development proposing the 
redevelopment of the former 
Brighten Place and St. James 
Church site with 68 (transit oriented) 
apartments, and a restaurant in the 
"historical" portion of the church. 

The Borough drafted a Zoning Overlay District Ordinance to 
encourage transit-oriented and multi-property 
redevelopment of the area.  The Ordinance was approved 
by Borough Council in August 2014. 

The Borough Council considered this project at their 
meeting on May 12, 2015 and granted Conditional Approval 
of the project.  Revised plans (dated, last revised February 
18, 2016) were submitted for review. CKS completed review 
of those plans and issued a letter dated March 25, 2016 with 
comments.  Revised plan sheets addressing CKS’s 
comments were received and found acceptable.  Plans for 
recording and construction have been provided.  The 
PennDOT Highway Occupancy Permits for the project have 
been secured.  Agreements have been executed and a 
pre-construction meeting was held June 24, 2016.  

Site construction associated with Phase 1 is complete. CKS 
issued a final Punch List on June 8, 2017.  Developer has 
addressed physical work items on Punch List. As-built plans 
have been provided and distributed. The maintenance 
security has been posted and dedication of improvements 
within easements has occurred. Borough Council approved 
the close-out of the maintenance security for Phase 1 at 
their March 10, 2020 meeting. 

Phase 2  
Improvements 
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4400 Chalfont View 
(Hellberg/Swim Club 
Properties) Residential 
Subdivision 

Project proposes development of 
the Hellberg and Lenape Valley 
Swim Club tracts plus the Estes and 
Hopkins properties (17.5 total acres) 
into 58 single-family residential 
homes having 7,000 sf minimum 
lots.  In addition, modifications to 
the adjacent Chalfont Greene 
Stormwater Detention Basin, along 
with off-site improvements including 
the completion of sidewalk along the 
west side of North Main Street from 
Westview Avenue to 
Swartley-Winkleman fields, are 
proposed by the project. 

Council conducted a Conditional Use Hearing at their 
July 14, 2015 meeting and granted the Conditional Use of 
the B-13 (Village House) and B-14 (Small Village House) 
within the B-12 (Planned Village Development) subject to 
conditions. Borough Council also approved a text 
amendment to the Zoning Ordinance at their July 14, 2015 
meeting to address zoning.   

Following the above approvals, the project proposed 
additional residential units on two adjacent parcels (Hopkins 
and Estes).  As a result, an amendment to the Conditional 
Use approval was requested to include these parcels.   The 
amendment was considered by Council on September 13, 
2016 and approved.  Council granted conditional 
preliminary plan approval at their November 8, 2016 
meeting and conditional final plan approval on June 13, 
2017.  Plans dated with a last revised date of May 30, 2017 
are now acceptable for recording.   PennDOT HOP permits 
have been issued. Agreements have been executed and 
construction has started.  CKS has also completed a review 
of the legal descriptions and exhibit plans for the easements 
and right-of-way to be secured and find those documents 
acceptable for processing. All off-site easement/row 
agreements have been executed. 

Construction is nearly complete. Developer has completed 
the conversion of the temporary sediment basin to the 
permanent bioretention basin. Final paving of interior roads 
is complete. Paving of Westview Avenue has been 
performed. CKS issued a final punch list to the Developer 
on December 14, 2020. As-built plans have been approved 
and distributed to the Borough. Punch list work is complete. 
Council accepted dedication of public improvements at their 
meeting on June 14, 2021 starting the 18-month 
maintenance period. CKS prepared the final construction 
escrow release dated July 2, 2021 for processing. 
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4408 202 N. Main Street 
Land Development 

Project proposes a new 2,130 sf 
two-story building with associated 
parking on a 0.4-acre lot. An 
existing 2,941 sf building is to 
remain. The new building will 
contain three garden apartments 
and the existing building will contain 
five garden apartments for a total of 
eight apartments. 

The Borough’s Zoning Hearing Board granted three 
variances for the project to permit the lot size to be 15,825 
sf (20,000 sf required by Z.O. 407.2.E.1.b); 21 feet of 
building separation (30 feet required by Z.O. 407.2.E.1.g); 
and eight dwelling units (Z.O. 707.H). Land Development 
Plans dated April 12, 2019 have been submitted for review. 
CKS completed a review and issued a letter dated June 4, 
2019, with comments. Borough Planning Commission 
considered this project at their meeting on June 24, 2019 
and recommended approval with conditions. Council 
granted conditional approval at the July 9, 2019 meeting. 
Revised plans dated last revised December 3, 2019 have 
been submitted for review. CKS completed a review of 
those plans and issued a letter dated December 19, 2019 
with comments to be addressed. 

Plans dated last revised April 6, 2020 have been submitted 
for review. CKS completed a review of those plans and 
issued a letter dated April 9, 2020 indicating the plans are 
now acceptable. Escrow tabulation has been prepared and 
issued June 16, 2020. Agreements have been prepared and 
executed. Plans have been recorded. 
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CHALFONT BOROUGH 
PUBLIC WORKS REPORT 

November 2021 

Parks 

* All playground equipment was checked this month for wear and tear.

* All trails were swept this month.

Mowing 

* Mowing continues along with many trees trimmed in the parks.

Storm Water 

* All inlet tops were checked and cleaned before and after rain storms along with

the flood gates off Route 202.

* Lindenfield Parkway pipe work has continued.  An additional 32 feet was fixed

this month.

101 N. Main St. (Owowcow) 

* Mortar joints were repointed this month in an attempt to find a small leak in the

building.

Street lights  

* 18 street lights were found to be burned out during a bimonthly light inspection.

Universal Electric was contacted and all lights have since been fixed.

Patrick Hallman 

Public Works Foreman 

     Nov. 2 to Dec. 4, 2021
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Independent Auditors’ Report 

To the Board of Directors 
Chalfont Emergency Medical Services, Inc. 
  d/b/a Chal-Brit Regional Emergency Medical Services 
Chalfont, Pennsylvania 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Chalfont Emergency Medical Services, Inc. which 
comprise the statements of financial position as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the related statements of 
activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.  We conducted our 
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Chalfont Emergency Medical Services, Inc., at December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the changes in its 
net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. 

DunlapSLK, PC 

Chalfont, Pennsylvania 
November 8, 2021 
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2020 2019

Assets

Current Assets
Cash 587,183$         454,937$         
Accounts Receivable, Net of Allowance for Uncollectible
  Accounts 2020 $76,000; 2019 $75,000 257,270           283,079           
Prepaid Expenses 5,938               1,588               

Total Current Assets 850,391           739,604           

Property and Equipment, Net 583,900           632,384

Total Assets 1,434,291$      1,371,988$      

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current Liabilities
Current Portion of Long-Term Notes 30,498$           86,766$           
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 26,058             43,180
Deferred Revenue 67,797             46,813

Total Current Liabilities 124,353           176,759           

Long-Term Liabilities
Notes Payable 382,872           363,639           

Total Liabilities 507,225           540,398           

Net Assets
Without Donor Restrictions

Board Designated 3,579               3,573
Undesignated 892,814           789,571           

Total Without Donor Restrictions 896,393           793,144           
With Donor Restrictions 30,673             38,446             

Total Net Assets 927,066           831,590           

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 1,434,291$      1,371,988$      

CHALFONT EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES, INC.
d/b/a CHAL-BRIT REGIONAL EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES

Statements of Financial Position
December 31, 2020 and 2019

See notes to financial statements.
3
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Without Without
Donor With Donor Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total Restrictions Restrictions Total

Support and Revenue
Ambulance Service 658,484$       -$  658,484$       738,091$       -$  738,091$       
Municipal Support 213,853         - 213,853 209,436         - 209,436 
Memberships 99,561           - 99,561 90,354           - 90,354 
Donations 19,407           - 19,407 6,705             15,000           21,705 
Grants - 20,047 20,047 - 7,155 7,155 
Interest Income 101 - 101 178 - 178 
Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Equipment (283) - (283) 8,860 - 8,860 
Net Assets Released from Restrictions 27,820           (27,820) - 12,374 (12,374) - 

Total Support and Revenue 1,018,943      (7,773)            1,011,170      1,065,998      9,781             1,075,779      

Expenses
Program Services 812,434         - 812,434 853,075         - 853,075 
Support Services

General and Administrative 95,666           - 95,666 103,727         - 103,727 
Fundraising 7,594             - 7,594 6,783             - 6,783 

Total Expenses 915,694         - 915,694 963,585         - 963,585 

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets 103,249         (7,773)            95,476           102,413         9,781             112,194         

Net Assets
Beginning of Year 793,144         38,446           831,590         690,731 28,665 719,396

End of Year 896,393$       30,673$         927,066$       793,144$       38,446$         831,590$       

20192020

CHALFONT EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES, INC.
d/b/a CHAL-BRIT REGIONAL EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES

Statements of Activities
Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

See notes to financial statements.
4
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Program 
Services

Management 
and General Fundraising Totals

Salaries 436,676$         44,449$           -$  481,125$         
Bad Debts 95,737             - - 95,737             
Insurance 69,678             - - 69,678             
Depreciation 46,755             1,446               - 48,201 
Administration Services 43,671             - - 43,671 
Payroll Taxes 37,545             3,241               - 40,786 
Interest 26,801             - - 26,801 
Repairs and Maintenance 24,255             - - 24,255 
Technology Services - 18,873 - 18,873 
Accounting - 14,885 - 14,885 
Medical Supplies 11,175             - - 11,175 
Utilities 9,753               302 - 10,055 
Office Expense - 9,073 - 9,073 
Membership Billing - - 7,594               7,594 
Telephone 5,934               184 - 6,118 
Miscellaneous 2,486               - - 2,486 
Uniforms 1,968               - - 1,968 
Postage and Delivery - 1,335 - 1,335 
Professional Fees - 1,209 - 1,209 
Bank Charges - 669 - 669 
Conferences and Training - - - -
Vehicle Fuel - - - -

Total Expenses 812,434$         95,666$           7,594$             915,694$         

CHALFONT EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES, INC.
d/b/a CHAL-BRIT REGIONAL EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES

Statement of Functional Expenses
Year Ended December 31, 2020

See notes to financial statements.
5
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Program 
Services

Management 
and General Fundraising Totals

Salaries 444,933$         42,500$           -$  487,433$         
Bad Debts 112,092           - - 112,092           
Insurance 85,074             - - 85,074             
Depreciation 41,583             1,286               - 42,869 
Administration Services 50,642             - - 50,642 
Payroll Taxes 38,845             3,316               - 42,161 
Interest 21,749 - - 21,749 
Repairs and Maintenance 25,119             - - 25,119 
Technology Services - 22,989 - 22,989 
Accounting - 14,290 - 14,290 
Medical Supplies 12,860             - - 12,860 
Utilities 10,665             330 - 10,995 
Office Expense - 13,071 10 13,081 
Membership Billing - - 6,773               6,773 
Telephone 5,256               163 - 5,419 
Miscellaneous 1,095 209 - 1,304 
Uniforms 2,851               - - 2,851 
Postage and Delivery - 1,866 - 1,866 
Professional Fees - 3,105 - 3,105 
Bank Charges - 602 - 602 
Conferences and Training 169 - - 169 
Vehicle Fuel 142 - - 142 

Total Expenses 853,075$         103,727$         6,783$             963,585$         

CHALFONT EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES, INC.
d/b/a CHAL-BRIT REGIONAL EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES

Statement of Functional Expenses
Year Ended December 31, 2019

See notes to financial statements.
6
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2020 2019

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Increase in Net Assets 95,476$           112,194$         
Adjustments to Reconcile Increase in Net Assets
  to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Bad Debts 95,737             112,092           
Depreciation 48,201             42,869             
(Gain) Loss on Disposal of Equipment 283 (8,860)              
Change in Assets and Liabilities

(Increase) Decrease in
Accounts Receivable (69,928)            (138,514)          
Prepaid Expenses (4,350)              (1,588)              

Increase (Decrease) in
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses (17,122)            9,274               
Deferred Revenue 20,984             3,271               

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 169,281           130,738           

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Proceeds from Sale of Property and Equipment - 10,000 
Purchase of Property and Equipment - (123,830) 

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities - (113,830) 

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from Long-Term Notes 61,915             88,830             
Principal Payments on Long-Term Note (98,950)            (26,013)            

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities (37,035)            62,817             

Net Increase in Cash 132,246           79,725             

Cash
Beginning of Year 454,937           375,212           

End of Year 587,183$         454,937$         

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information
Cash Payments for Interest 26,801$           21,749$           

CHALFONT EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES, INC.
d/b/a CHAL-BRIT REGIONAL EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES

Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

See notes to financial statements.
7
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CHALFONT EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES, INC. 
d/b/a CHAL-BRIT REGIONAL EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2020 and 2019 

8 

1. NATURE OF ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Organization
Chalfont Emergency Medical Services, Inc., (Organization) headquartered in New Britain Township, Bucks
County, Pennsylvania, provides emergency medical care and educational services to its area of responsibility,
which is concentrated in Bucks County.  The Organization is also operating under the name of Chal-Brit
Regional Emergency Medical Services.  The revenues of the Organization are provided by ambulance service
revenue, municipal support, and public memberships.

Basis of Accounting
The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, whereby
revenues are recognized when earned, and expenses are recognized when incurred.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Financial Statement Presentation
Accounting standards prescribe the format for general-purpose financial statements for all not-for-profit
organizations.  The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (US GAAP), which require the Organization to report
information regarding its financial position and activities according to the following net asset classifications:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions 
and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the Organization.  These 
net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization’s management and the Board of Directors. 

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and grantors. 
Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by the actions of the 
Organization or by the passage of time.  Other donor restrictions may be perpetual in nature, whereby the 
donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.  The Organization had no assets with perpetual 
donor restrictions at December 31, 2020 and 2019 and during the years then ended. 

Cash 
The Organization maintains its cash accounts in several banks.  Accounts at each institution are insured by the 
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000.  The Organization has not experienced any 
losses in such accounts.  Management believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash. 
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1. NATURE OF ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are stated at unpaid balances, less an allowance for doubtful accounts.  The Organization
provides for losses on accounts receivable using the allowance method.  The allowance is based on
experience, third-party contracts, and other circumstances, which may affect the ability of patients to meet
their obligations.  Receivables are considered impaired if full principal payments are not received in
accordance with the contractual terms.  It is the Organization’s policy to charge off uncollectible accounts
receivable when management determines the receivable will not be collected.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost.  Depreciation is provided generally on a straight-line basis over the
estimated service lives of the respective classes of property.  The estimated useful lives of depreciable assets
are:

Classifications Years

Building  10-40
Ambulances  5-10
Radio and Equipment 3-10

Revenue Recognition and Deferred Revenue 
In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Accounting Standards (FASB) Update 2014-
09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which created a new Topic ASC 606, and subsequent related 
updates. The core principle of the new guidance is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the 
transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the 
entity expects to be entitled for those goods or services.  The updated standard replaces most existing revenue 
recognition guidance in US GAAP. The Organization adopted this pronouncement during the year ended 
December 31, 2020, and management believes the standard improves the usefulness and understandability of 
the Organization’s financial reporting. 

Analysis of various provisions of this standard resulted in no significant changes in the way the Organization 
recognizes revenue, and therefore no changes to the previously issued audited financial statements were 
required. The presentation and disclosures of revenue have been enhanced in accordance with the standard. 

The Organization derives the majority of its revenue from ambulance services, municipal support, grants and 
membership fees. Revenue from certain grants, ambulance services, and membership fees are recognized 
under these new standards as described below. 
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1. NATURE OF ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue Recognition and Deferred Revenue (continued)

Grants
The Organization receives grant funding from various sources.  The grant agreements contain conditions
relating to performance requirements or the incurrence of allowable expenditures.  Revenue is recognized
over time as each requirement is met or as the allowable expenditure is incurred.  Any funds received prior to
the Organization’s right to recognize revenue is reported as deferred revenue in the statement of financial
position.  The Organization received a grant totaling $15,048 that has not been recognized as support as of
December 31, 2020, and has been recognized as deferred revenue in the statement of financial position.

Membership
The Organization offers a subscription plan, designed to save individuals out-of-pocket expenses. The
subscription entitles the subscriber to emergency treatment and transport to area hospitals at no additional
cost. The annual subscription plan is mailed to all households in May and is in effect from July to June. There
are currently five levels of subscription membership to choose from at varying prices to accommodate
different individual and family needs. The Organization recognizes membership fee revenue over the period
for which the fee covers. The Organization received membership fees totaling $52,749 that have been
recognized as deferred revenue in the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2020.

Ambulance Services
The Organization receives ambulance revenue from providing high quality basic and advanced life support
pre-hospital care to the community in which they serve. When someone receives services without a
membership, the Organization utilizes Cornerstone Adminisystems, Ambulance Billing Experts, to handle the
payments and reimbursements with third-party insurance payers. In the case of emergency situations, no
formal agreement has been reached; however, an oral contract is typically reached since the customer calls the
Organization to request their assistance. The performance obligation is satisfied by the pre-hospital care
provided. The transaction price is determined at the point in time in which Cornerstone Adminisystems has
enough information to process claims for the customer. The insurance companies reimburse the provider on a
fee-for-service basis and the Organization recognizes the revenue as they provide the service. Appropriate
allowances giving recognition to third-party arrangements are also accounted for on an accrual basis.

Contributions
Contributions, including unconditional promises to give, are recorded as revenue when received.  Property
and other non-cash contributions are recorded at fair value at the date of gift or bequest.  Contributions are
considered to be available for unrestricted use unless they are received with donor stipulations that limit the
use of the donated assets.  When a donor restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or
purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assts without
donor restrictions and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Allocation of Expenses
The costs of providing the various programs and supporting activities of the Organization have been
summarized on a functional basis in the statements of activities and functional expenses.  Accordingly, certain
costs have been allocated among the program and supporting activities based on time and effort.
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1. NATURE OF ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Income Tax Status
The Organization is qualified as a non-profit organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code.  Accordingly, its income related to its tax exempt purpose is not subject to federal or state income
taxes.  The Organization did not have any unrelated business income for the years ended December 31, 2020
and 2019 that would be subject to federal or state income taxes.  Consequently, the accompanying financial
statements do not reflect any provision for income taxes.

The Organization accounts for uncertainty in income taxes using a recognition threshold of more-likely-than-
not to be sustained upon examination by the appropriate taxing authority.  Measurement of the tax uncertainty
occurs if the recognition threshold is met.  Management determined there were no tax uncertainties that met
the recognition threshold in 2020 and 2019.

The Organization’s Forms 990, Federal Return of Organizations Exempt from Income Tax, for the previous
three years remains subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service.

2. AVAILABILITY AND LIQUIDITY

Financial assets available for general expenditures, that is, without donor or other restrictions limiting their
use within one year of December 31, 2020, comprise of the following:

Financial Assets at Period End 
 Cash $ 587,183 
 Accounts Receivable 257,270 
  Total Financial Assets 844,453 

Less Amounts Not Available to be Used Within One Year
Net Assets with Donor Restrictions 30,673 
Board Designated Net Assets 3,579 

34,252
Financial Assets Available to Meet General Expenditures 
 Over the Next Year $ 810,201

Management believes that the Organization has sufficient financial assets on hand to meet operating cash flow 
needs.   
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3. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, property and equipment is detailed as follows:

Cost 
12/31/20

Depreciation 
2020  

Accumulated 
Depreciation 

12/31/20  

2020 
Net Book 

Value 

Building $    609,044 $    15,306 $  195,493 $  413,551 
Ambulances 200,180  20,018  53,653  146,527 
Equipment 218,125  12,877  194,303  23,822 

$ 1,027,349 $    48,201 $  443,449 $  583,900 

Cost 
12/31/19

Depreciation 
2019  

Accumulated 
Depreciation 

12/31/19  

2019 
Net Book 

Value 

Building $    609,044 $    15,304 $ 180,187 $ 428,857 
Ambulances       200,180       13,466    33,635      166,545 
Equipment 247,986  14,099  211,004  36,982 

$ 1,057,210 $    42,869 $ 424,826 $ 632,384 

4. NOTES PAYABLE

The Organization has a loan with Penn Community Bank that matures on January 1, 2033.  Currently, the
monthly payment on the loan is $3,383, including interest.  On November 14, 2013, the loan was modified
and the interest rate set at 4.5% per annum from December 1, 2013 through November 1, 2018.  On that date
and every five years thereafter, the interest will be reset at the greater of the five-year constant maturity
treasury index plus 2.75% per annum or 4.5% per annum.  Currently, the interest rate is 5.73% per annum.
Any change in the interest rate will change the monthly payment.  The loan is secured by real estate.  During
2019, an additional principal payment of $7,155 was paid using grant contributions.  At December 31, 2020
and 2019, the outstanding balance on this loan was $341,505 and $361,575, respectively.

Aggregate maturities of this note payable are as follows:

Year Ending 
December 31, Amount 

2021 $    21,600 
2022 22,870
2023 24,216
2024 25,640
2025 27,149

2026 and Thereafter  220,030 

$  341,505 
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4. NOTES PAYABLE (continued)

On September 16, 2019, the Organization issued two loans with KS StateBank for a total of $88,830
consisting of a five year loan for $26,915, and a short term Pennsylvania Emergency Management Agency
(PEMA) bridge loan for $61,915 to finance the purchase of a 2018 Ford Ambulance Truck. The annual
payment on the five year loan is $6,580, including interest at 7.09% per annum. During 2020, an additional
payment of $10,843 was paid primarily with grant contributions and as a result, the loan matures on
September 16, 2022. At December 31, 2020, the outstanding balance on this loan was $11,431. In May 2020,
the Organization received the PEMA loan for $61,915, to satisfy the KS StateBank bridge loan. Currently, the
monthly payment on the PEMA loan is $398, including interest. The loan matures on June 1, 2035, and the
interest rate is 2% per annum. At December 31, 2020, the outstanding balance on this loan was $60,434. The
loans are secured by the ambulance.

Aggregate maturities of these note payables are as follows:

Year Ending 
December 31, Amount 

2021 $    8,898 
2022 9,817
2023 3,752
2024 3,828
2025 3,906

2026 and Thereafter  41,664 

$   71,865 

5. DESIGNATED NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

The Board of Directors has designated $3,579 and $3,573 of the net assets without donor restrictions balance
held at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, for ambulance-designated debt service.

6. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes at December 31:

2020 2019 

Emergency Vehicle Purchase $    17,227 $    25,000 
Strike Team     13,446     13,446 

$    30,673 $    38,446 
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6. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS (continued)

Net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted purposes or by
occurrence of other events specified by donors as follows:

2020 2019

Purposes Restrictions Accomplished: 
Emergency Vehicle Purchase  $    16,965 $      5,000 
Covid-19 Related Expenditures 10,855 - 
Debt Reduction - 7,155
Background Checks and Training - 219

$    27,820 $    12,374 

7. LAND LEASE

The Organization's building is located on land owned by New Britain Township and leased for $1 per year.
The lease runs for 20 years ending in 2027, with three additional three-year renewal terms unless either party
provides three months’ notice of termination.

8. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The Organization has a paid time off policy that covers time off from work for personal purposes, vacations,
and other occasions.  According to the policy, paid time off can only be carried over up to 72 hours and
anything beyond that can be paid out by approval from supervisor.  At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the
balance in accrued vacation was $4,990 and $11,373, respectively.

9. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through November 8, 2021, the date the financial statements were
available to be issued.
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RESOLUTION No. 2021-11 

CHALFONT BOROUGH, BUCKS COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CHALFONT BOROUGH COUNCIL FIXING 

THE TAX RATE FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2022 

WHEREAS, the Borough Council of Chalfont Borough (“Borough”), after a Borough 

Council Meeting, in an effort to preserve the health, safety, and welfare of its residents, and comply 

with the applicable Borough Code sections, believes it to be in the best interest of the residents of 

the Borough to levy real estate taxes as set forth herein; and 

WHEREAS, the intent of this Resolution is to set the annual real estate tax rate as required 

by 8 Pa.C.S.A. § 1310 upon adoption of the annual budget; and 

WHEREAS, the Borough Code at 8 Pa.C.S.A. § 1302(a) authorizes the passage of a 

Resolution in lieu of an Ordinance for taxes levied at the same rate as the preceding year; and 

WHEREAS, the Borough Code at 8 Pa.C.S.A. § 1302(a) authorizes the Borough to levy 

a tax not exceeding thirty (30) mills for general purposes as elaborated therein; and 

WHEREAS, the Borough Code at 8 Pa.C.S.A. § 1302(a)(6) allows the Borough to levy a 

tax not exceeding three (3) mills for fire protection purposes as elaborated therein; and 

WHEREAS, in conjunction with preparing the 2022 annual budget, the Borough Council 

has determined that the tax rate for 2022 shall be 13.25 mills for general purposes, 3.25 mills for 

debt service, 1.25 mills for fire protection purposes and at .50 mills for ambulance and rescue 

squad purposes; and 

WHEREAS, the Borough Council has adopted its annual budget for 2022 and now must 

levy taxes for 2022 to fund the annual budget. 
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NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by Chalfont Borough Council as follows: 

1. The 2022 real estate tax rate is 13.25 mills for general purposes, 3.25 mills for debt

service, 1.25 mills for fire protection purposes, and .50 mills for ambulance and rescue squad 

purposes. 

2. In the event that any one or more of the provisions, sections, sentences, clauses or

parts contained in this Resolution shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable 

in any respect, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision, 

section, sentence, clause or part of this Resolution, and this Resolution shall be construed and 

enforced as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein. 

3. All resolutions or parts of resolutions inconsistent herewith or in conflict with any

of the specific terms enacted hereby, to the extent of said inconsistencies or conflicts, are 

hereby specifically repealed. 

4. This Resolution shall be effective upon enactment.

THIS RESOLUTION WAS DULY ADOPTED by the Borough Council of Chalfont 

Borough on this 13th day of December, 2021. 

ATTEST: CHALFONT BOROUGH COUNCIL 

______________________________ _________________________________ 

Dawn M. Tremmel, Secretary John R. Engel, President 

_________________________________ 

Brian D. Wallace, Mayor 
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CHALFONTBOROUGH 
40 N. Main Street    Chalfont, PA 18914  P: 215-822-7295  F: 215-822-5528

www.chalfontborough.com  

Page 1 of 4

November 3, 2021 

The 2022 Chalfont Borough Proposed Budget is respectfully submitted to Borough Council and the 
citizens of Chalfont Borough.  As presented, this spending plan will allow Chalfont Borough to 
continue to provide outstanding municipal services and programs to its residents and businesses 
with no proposed tax increase. 

Chalfont Borough has a long history of providing high-level services to improve the quality of life in 
the community.  Tax dollars fund a wide range of programs and services including the following: 

 24-hour police protection, including criminal investigations, patrol and
administration with several specialized units such as K-9, Traffic Safety and Victim
Specialist Unit.

 Public Works services that include snow removal, repair and maintenance of
fifteen miles of roads, and stormwater management.

 Parks and Recreation amenities including parks and trail systems.

 Administration and community service to address resident concerns, coordinate
volunteer organizations, and oversee day-to-day operations of the Borough.

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

The 2022 Proposed Budget is balanced and includes $2,566,281 in operational expenditures, 
$249,000 in non-operational expenditures (Interfund Transfers) and $1,513,893 in capital 
expenditures.  The General Fund is utilizing $513,681 of unrestricted reserve to balance the budget. 

There are two issues that continue to receive attention during our budget discussions:  the reliance 
and utilization of unrestricted reserve to balance the operating budget, and establishing a long-
term funding source for the Capital Fund.   

Although the proposed General Fund budget is balanced, long-term forecasts show that 
operational expenditures will begin to outpace anticipated revenues in future years.  With the new 
housing developments, Chalfont Crossing and School House Meadows, the Borough will see 
increased revenue in Real Estate Taxes and Earned Income Tax, which will help mitigate those 
increases.   
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FUND BALANCE 

Fund balance refers to the amount of money in a given category.  For annual budgeting, a beginning 
and ending balance is listed to determine how much money a fund has gained or lost within a given 
year.  Much like a checking account, there is a continuous rotation of money entering and exiting 
each fund.   

Fund balances in the Borough’s five funds are projected to be the following at the end of 2022: 

Beginning Ending 

Fund 2022 2022 Fund 

FUND Balance Revenue Expenditures Balance 

General $1,373,360 $2,301,600 $2,815,281 $859,679 

Capital $742,806 $983,487 $1,513,893 $212,401 

Debt Service $19,463 $169,000 $146,943 $41,520 

Water Fund $4,293,657 $85,000 $59,500 $4,319,157 

Highway Aid $171,275 $117,584 $260,056 $28,803 

$6,600,562 $3,656,671 $4,795,673 $5,461,560 

There are generally two types of fund balances:  assigned and unassigned.  Assigned fund balances 
are amounts that a government intends to use for specific purposes.  The fund balance in Capital 
and Debt Service is an assigned fund balance because the Borough intends to use it for capital 
purchases, or for the payment of debt service.  Unassigned fund balances are amounts that are 
available for any purpose.  This is the case with Chalfont’s General Fund balance.  When determining 
financial health of a government entity, the best indicator is the unassigned balance of the General 
Fund.    

FUND HIGHLIGHTS 

General Fund 
The General Fund is the largest fund of the Borough.  In nearly all governments, the General Fund 
is a flexible account where non-restricted revenues can be spent on expenditures.  The General 
Fund covers nearly all aspects and needs of the Borough that do not have their own fund or need 
supplementary funds.   

The primary revenues of Chalfont Borough’s General fund come from Real Estate Property Taxes 
and Local Tax Enabling Act 511 Taxes.  The Earned Income Tax (EIT) is the largest source of revenue 
in the General Fund.  The largest expenses of the General Fund are on Police (Central Bucks 
Regional Police Department), Insurance and Miscellaneous (medical insurances, pension, and 
property and liability) and Public Works (salaries, equipment and supplies).  Administrative costs 
are also charged to the General Fund.  For 2022, the General Fund budget is $2,815,281. 
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General Fund Revenues.  The EIT is the largest source of revenue at $856,000 (37%), followed by 
Real Estate Taxes at $707,000 (31%).  Other major revenue categories include the Real Estate 
Transfer Tax at $146,000 (6%) and Rents and Royalties at $128,300 (6%).  The total millage for 
Chalfont Borough is 16.50 mills, the same as 2021.  A detailed history of Chalfont’s Real Estate Tax 
can be found in the Budget document.   

General Fund Expenditures.  The primary expenditure category in the General Fund is Police 
Services at $1,235,927, or 44% of expenditures.  Other significant expenditure categories in the 
2022 General Fund include Executive at $324,800 (12%), Public Works at $267,400 (10%), and 
Insurance and Miscellaneous at $245,000 (9%). 

Capital Fund 
The Capital Fund proposes $1,513,893 in capital projects for 2022. The Capital Fund provides 
estimated capital needs and associated cost projections for the coming five years.   

Debt Service Fund 
The Debt Service Fund pays off the Borough’s debt, including principal (the original amount of the 
loan) plus interest.  This is an appropriated, major, special revenue governmental fund.  Debt is 
incurred whenever the Borough needs additional funding to offset major capital projects such as 
the CBRPD headquarters, road projects, and stormwater improvements.  The most common form 
of debt is through the issuance of bonds.  As of December 31, 2021, the Borough will have 
outstanding debt in the amount of $2,519,058.  The Borough will spend approximately $146,946 
in 2022 towards the principal and interest of these debts.  Detailed debt service schedules are 
available in the 2022 Budget document. 

Water Reserve Fund  
In 2001, the Borough’s water system was sold to Philadelphia Suburban for approximately $4.6 
million.  This money is now held in an investment fund, an appropriated, major, special revenue 
governmental fund.  Funds are invested in U.S. Government secured mortgage companies, Federal 
Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (Freddie Mac), Federal National Mortgage Association (Fannie 
Mae) and Governmental National Mortgage Association (Ginnie Mae).  The Borough has adopted 
Ordinance No. 343 establishing policies for the investment and preservation of the monies in this 
fund.  In 2022, 60% of the interest earned will be transferred to the General Fund and 10% will be 
transferred into the Parks and Recreation bank account in the General Fund.  

Highway Aid Fund 
The Highway Aid Fund is an appropriated special revenue governmental fund funded by the State 
Motor Vehicle Fuel Tax.  Expenses in this fund are limited to road and highway related projects. 
The Borough’s allotment is based on population and road mileage.  Anticipated expenditures in 
this fund for 2022 are $260,056.  The largest category in 2022 is $225,000 for road construction, 
stormwater replacement on Jasen Drive, Jana Circle and Renee Circle.  These roads will be milled 
and overlaid after a complete replacement of stormwater pipes under the road ways.  
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CONCLUSION 

The preparation of this Budget is the culmination of a collaborative process which began in the 
summer and involved the efforts of many people including the Finance Committee and Borough 
staff.  The annual budget document is the single most important policy document adopted by 
Council each year and reflects the hard work of everyone involved.   

I appreciate the dedicated commitment of the entire Borough team of employees for their daily 
efforts in providing outstanding services to the citizens of Chalfont Borough.  I would also like to 
express my appreciation to Borough Council for the guidance they have provided during the budget 
process.   

This Budget will be a valuable asset in making important decisions that will impact Chalfont citizens 
and Borough government during the upcoming year.  I appreciate the opportunity to serve Borough 
Council and the citizens of Chalfont, and look forward to the opportunities and challenges that lie 
ahead in 2022.   

Sincerely, 

Shawn Curran 
Borough Manager 
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RESOLUTION No. 2021-10 

CHALFONT BOROUGH, BUCKS COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CHALFONT BOROUGH COUNCIL SUMMARIZING 

EXPENDITURES AND REVENUES FOR EACH FUND AND ADOPTING A BUDGET 

FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR BEGINNING ON THE FIRST DAY OF JANUARY 2022, 

AND ENDING ON THE LAST DAY OF DECEMBER 2022 

Whereas, the Borough Charter at §C5-5 requires adoption of the budget by resolution of Borough 

Council, and 

Whereas, the Borough of Chalfont Council has appointed borough staff to prepare and submit a 

proposed budget to said governing body at the proper time, and  

Whereas, the Borough of Chalfont borough staff has submitted a proposed budget to this governing 

body on November 8, 2021, for its consideration; and, 

Whereas, upon due and proper notice, published or posted in accordance with the law, said 

proposed budget was open for inspection by the public at a designated place, a public hearing was 

held on November 8, 2021, and interested taxpayers were given the opportunity to file or register 

any objections to said proposed budget; and  

Whereas, whatever increases may have been made in the expenditures, like increases were added 

to the revenues or planned to be expended from the reserves/fund balances, so that the budget 

remains in balance as required by law. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Chalfont Borough Council approves, by 

adoption of this resolution: 

1. That the budget as submitted, amended, and summarized by fund, hereby is approved and

adopted as the budget of the Borough of Chalfont for the year stated above;

2. That the budget hereby approved and adopted shall be signed and made part of public

records of the Borough of Chalfont.

THIS RESOLUTION WAS DULY ADOPTED by the Borough Council of Chalfont Borough on 

the 13th day of December, 2021. 

ATTEST CHALFONT BOROUGH COUNCIL 

By: 

____________________________ _____________________________ 

Dawn M. Tremmel, Secretary John R. Engel, President 
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RESOLUTION No. 2021-12 

CHALFONT BOROUGH, BUCKS COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA 

BUCKS COUNTY 2021 HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN 
MUNICIPAL ADOPTION RESOLUTION 

WHEREAS, the Borough of Chalfont, Bucks County, Pennsylvania is most vulnerable to natural and human-made 

hazards which may result in loss of life and property, economic hardship, and threats to public health and safety, and

WHEREAS, Section 322 of the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 (DMA 2000) requires state and local governments 

to develop and submit for approval to the President a mitigation plan that outlines processes for identifying their 

respective natural hazards, risks, and vulnerabilities, and

WHEREAS, the Borough of Chalfont acknowledges the requirements of Section 322 of DMA 2000 to have an 

approved Hazard Mitigation Plan as a prerequisite to receiving post-disaster Hazard Mitigation Grant Program funds; 

and

WHEREAS, the Bucks County 2021 Hazard Mitigation Plan has been developed by the Bucks County Emergency 

Management Agency and the Bucks County Planning Commission in cooperation with other county departments, and 

officials and citizens of the Borough of Chalfont; and

WHEREAS, a public involvement process consistent with the requirements of DMA 2000 was conducted to develop 

the Bucks County 2021 Hazard Mitigation Plan; and

WHEREAS, the Bucks County 2021 Hazard Mitigation Plan recommends mitigation activities that will reduce 

losses to life and property affected by both natural and human-made hazards that face the County and its municipal 

governments,

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the governing body for the Borough of Chalfont:

• The Bucks County 2021 Hazard Mitigation Plan is hereby adopted as the official Hazard Mitigation Plan of the

Borough of Chalfont; and

• The respective officials and agencies identified in the implementation strategy of the Bucks County 2021 Hazard

Mitigation Plan are hereby directed to implement the recommended activities assigned to them.

THIS RESOLUTION WAS DULY ADOPTED by the Borough Council of Chalfont Borough 

on this 13th day of December, 2021. 

ATTEST: CHALFONT BOROUGH COUNCIL 

______________________________ _________________________________ 

Dawn M. Tremmel, Secretary John R. Engel, President 
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NOTICE 

BOROUGH OF CHALFONT 
YEAR 2022 MONTHLY MEETINGS 

The Borough of Chalfont will hold standing meetings throughout 2022 as listed below.  All 

meetings take place at Borough Hall, 40 N. Main St., Chalfont, unless otherwise noted.  The public 

is invited to attend all meetings.  During Emergency Declaration periods and/or due to Covid-19 

safety guidelines, meetings may have to be held remotely.  Check the Borough’s website, 

www.chalfontborough.com, call the Borough office at 215-822-7295, or email 

info@chalfontborough.com for updates on meeting information, and for additional information 

on how to participate remotely, if the need should arise. 

Borough Council meetings occur on the second Monday of each month at 7:00 PM, with the 

exception of January when it will meet on the third Wednesday; January 17, February 14, March 

14, April 11, May 9, June 13, July 11, August 8, September 12, October 10, November 14, 

December 12. 

Summary Borough Council meeting dates are AS NEEDED and will occur on the fourth Tuesday 

of each month at 7:00 PM; January 25, February 22, March 22, April 26, May 24, June 28, July 26, 

August 23, September 27, October 25, November 22, with the exception of December when it 

will meet on the third Tuesday, December 20. 

Historic Architectural Review Board meeting dates are AS NEEDED at 7:00 PM on the first 

Monday of each month, with the exception of January, July, and September, when it will meet 

on the first Tuesday. 

Planning Commission meeting dates are AS NEEDED at 7:00 PM on the fourth Monday of each 

month, with the exception of December when it will meet on the third Monday, December 19. 

Zoning Hearing Board meeting dates are AS NEEDED at 7:00 PM on the fourth Wednesday of 

each month, with the exception of November when it will meet on the fifth Wednesday, 

November 30. 
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Independent Auditors’ Report 

Board of Directors 

Chalfont-New Britain Township 

Joint Sewage Authority 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business type activities of 

Chalfont-New Britain Township Joint Sewage Authority, Bucks County, Pennsylvania, as of and 

for the year ended May 31, 2021, as listed in the table of contents, and the related notes to the 

financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 

in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 

includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 

preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We 

conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 

States of America.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 

reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 

disclosures in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ 

judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor 

considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 

statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 

for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. 

Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 

of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 

management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our audit opinions. 
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Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 

the respective financial position of the business-type activities of Chalfont-New Britain 

Township Joint Sewage Authority as of May 31, 2021, and the respective changes in financial 

position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 

generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 

management’s discussion and analysis on pages 5 through 11 be presented to supplement the 

basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 

statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be 

an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 

operational, economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the 

required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 

the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 

preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 

responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 

during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any 

assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 

evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 

collectively comprise the Chalfont-New Britain Township Joint Sewage Authority’s, financial 

statements as a whole.  The accompanying financial information listed as supplemental 

schedules-operating expenses and general and administrative expenses, is presented for purposes 

of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements.  The information has 

been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and 

certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to 

the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the 

financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 

standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the information is 

fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

Report on Summarized Comparative Information 

We have previously audited the Chalfont-New Britain Township Joint Sewage Authority’s 2020 

financial statements, and our report dated August 19, 2020, expressed an unmodified opinion on 

those audited financial statements.  In our opinion, the summarized comparative information 

presented herein as of and for the year ended May 31, 2020, is consistent, in all material respects, 

with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived. 

Bee, Bergvall and Company, P.C. 

Certified Public Accountants 

Warrington, PA 

October 1, 2021 
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CHALFONT-NEW BRITAIN TOWNSHIP JOINT SEWAGE AUTHORITY 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

May 31, 2021 

This Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is a brief overview of the financial 

condition of the Chalfont-New Britain Township Joint Sewage Authority (The Authority) as of 

May 31, 2021.  We have attempted to provide this information in a format easily read and 

understood by the general public. 

The annual Financial Report is comprised of two components: the MD&A and the Financial 

Statements, including the Auditor’s Report and notes.  The Authority’s audited Financial 

Statements for Fiscal Year ended May 31, 2021 (FY 2021) are attached. 

The Financial Statements are prepared in conformity with the U.S. Generally Accepted 

Accounting Principles (GAAP), with the exception of the Statement of Revenues and Expenses 

Compared to Budget, which is prepared on a cash basis as opposed to an accrual basis.  The 

Authority operates on a cash basis throughout the year converting to an accrual basis for the 

purpose of the annual financial audit and subsequent reporting, except as noted above. 

In this MD&A, Revenues and Expenses for FY 2021, compared to those for fiscal year ended 

May 31, 2020 (FY 2020), are reported on the accrual basis, as in the Financial Statements. 

Revenues and Expenses for FY 2021 compared to budget for FY 2021 are reported on the cash 

basis. 

The following are general accounting terms used throughout this document: 

Accrual Basis:  A method of accounting that recognizes revenue when earned, rather than when 

collected and expenses when incurred, rather than when paid. 

Assets:  Items of value owned by the Authority. 

Capital Assets:  Items owned by the Authority that are considered a major purchase and play an 

important role in the operations of the wastewater treatment facilities.  They are reported at the 

cost of the capitalized item less accumulated depreciation. 

Current Assets:  Items owned by the Authority that can reasonably be expected to be converted 

into cash or used in operations within a year. 

Depreciation:  An allowance made for wear and tear on an asset over its estimated useful life. 

Liabilities:  Debts or obligations owed by the Authority payable in money, goods, or services. 

-5-
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Net Position:  Accumulated undistributed earnings of an entity retained for future needs. 

Restricted Assets:  Cash or items owned by the Authority whose use is restricted for a specific 

purpose. 

This MD&A is a part of, and to be used in conjunction with, the Chalfont-New Britain Township 

Joint Sewage Authority Financial Statements as of May 31, 2021.  Questions concerning any 

information contained in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to 

the Executive Director, Chalfont-New Britain Township Joint Sewage Authority, 1645 Upper 

State Road, Doylestown, Pennsylvania 18901-2624. 

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION  (pages 12 and 13 of the Financial Statements) 

The Statements of Net Position provides information on all of the Authority’s assets and 

liabilities, with the difference between the two being reported as Net Position.  Changes in Net 

Position throughout the years are an indicator of the health of the Authority’s financial position. 

The following table summarizes the financial position of the Authority as of May 31, 2021 and 

2020: 

2021 2020

Assets

Current Assets 8,204,223$   7,923,414$   

Current Restricted Assets 199,552 204,511 

Capital Assets 40,311,507         41,409,032        

 Total Assets 48,715,282$   49,536,957$   

Liabilities

Payable from Current Assets 1,204,037$   1,543,551$   

Payable from Restricted Assets 199,552 204,511 

Long Term Liabilities 3,907,820           4,691,811          

 Total Liabilities 5,311,409           6,439,873          

Net Position

Net Investment in Capital Assets 36,523,872         36,823,634        

Unrestricted 6,880,001           6,273,450          

 Total Net Position 43,403,873$   43,097,084$   

-6-
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CHALFONT-NEW BRITAIN TOWNSHIP JOINT SEWAGE AUTHORITY 
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May 31, 2021 

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION  (pages 12 and 13 of the Financial Statements) 

(Continued) 

Total Assets of the Authority, as of May 31, 2021, were about $48.7 million, a decrease of about 

$800 thousand from FY 2020.  Of the Total Assets, about $8.2 million (17% of the total) are in 

Current Assets.  Current Assets increased about 3% from FY 2020.  Current Assets are general 

funds and “Time Open” investments at Univest Bank and in Term and CD programs with the 

Pennsylvania Local Government Investment Trust (PLGIT). Capital Assets of about $40.3 

million decreased slightly from FY 2020 due to depreciation of Assets.  Approximately $200 

thousand were in Current Restricted Assets.  Current Restricted Assets are escrow accounts held 

by the Authority on behalf of developers to ensure the proper construction of sewer systems in 

new residential and commercial developments. 

Total Liabilities of the Authority as of May 31, 2021, were approximately $5.3 million, an 18% 

decrease from FY 2020.  Long Term Liabilities of about $3.9 million (73% of the total) 

decreased about 17% from FY 2020, and is related to the Series 2016 Construction Loan for the 

treatment plant construction projects.  See Note 10 of the Financial Statements for further 

description of Construction Loan activities.  As of May 31, 2021, the outstanding principal on 

the Series 2016 Loan is approximately $4.6 million.  Of the Total Liabilities, about $1.2 million 

(23%) were Current, Payable from Current Assets.  Approximately $200 thousand (4%) were 

Payable from Restricted Assets, which are the developer escrow accounts held by the Authority.  

Long Term Liabilities also include employee-related Compensated Absences of approximately 

$120 thousand. 

Total Net Position of the Authority, as of May 31, 2021 is approximately $43.4 million with 

$36.5 million (84%) as Net Investment in Capital Assets, and approximately $6.9 million (16%) 

in Unrestricted Assets.  Total Net Position increased approximately 1% from FY 2020. 

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

(page 14) 

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position summarizes the net position 

of the Authority as of May 31, 2021 and provides a comparison to FY 2020. 

-7-
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STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION  

(Continued) 
2021 2020

Operating Revenues

Sewer Rentals 2,897,771$     2,806,649$   

Operating Payment 1,199,686       1,474,760       

Miscellaneous 47,872 33,245 

 Total Operating Revenues 4,145,329       4,314,654       

Operating Expenses

Facility Operating Expenses 3,066,095       2,864,553       

General & Administrative Expenses 953,366          965,449 

Compensated Absences 13,772 (10,758) 

Depreciation Expense on Assets 

 Reimbursed  Previously by BCWSA 763,397          689,999 

 Total Operating Expenses 4,796,630       4,509,243       

Operating Income (Loss) (651,301)         (194,589)         

Net Non-Operating Revenue (Expense)

Interest income 37,640 134,982 

Reimbursement for capital purchases 327,363          1,165,217       

Tap in fees 340,210          195,251 

Gain (loss) on replacement of fixed assets - (9,700) 

Interest expense (99,667) (112,224) 

Net Non-Operating Revenue (Expense) 605,546          1,373,526       

Income (Loss) Before Contributions (45,755) 1,178,937       

Capital Contributions 352,544          2,000 

Change in Net Position 306,789          1,180,937       

Net Position Beginning of Year 43,097,084     41,916,147     

Net Position End of Year 43,403,873$   43,097,084$   

Operating Revenues for FY 2021, reported on the accrual basis, were about $4.1 million, a 4% 

decrease from FY 2020, primarily a result of the amount of the Operating Payment received from 

BCWSA. Approximately $2.9 million (70%) of the Operating Revenues came from Authority 

Sewer Rentals, which increased by about 3% over FY 2020.  Operating Payments from the 

Bucks County Water and Sewer Authority (BCWSA) accounted for about $1.2 million (29%) of 

the Total Revenues.  BCWSA Operating Payments are based on a contractually fixed percentage 

of the treatment plant operating costs, plus or minus any applicable flow surcharges, and 

matched the budgeted amount for FY 2021.  Miscellaneous income accounted for approximately 

$48 thousand. 

Operating Expenses for FY 2021, inclusive of depreciation and reported on the accrual basis, 

totaled approximately $4.8 million, about a 6% increase over FY 2020.  Facility Operating 

Expenses of approximately $3.1 million increased by about 7% over FY 2020. Schedule A and 

Schedule B of the Financial Statements lists the Facility Operating Expenses, and General and 

Administrative Expenses respectively.  

-8-
82



CHALFONT-NEW BRITAIN TOWNSHIP JOINT SEWAGE AUTHORITY 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

May 31, 2021 

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION  

(Continued) 

These Schedules also include Depreciation as attributed to the Authority’s cost of the Capital 

Assets.  Depreciation Expense on Assets previously reimbursed by BCWSA, listed separately 

here and shown in the amount of about $763 thousand is related to the BCWSA’s cost share of 

the Capital Assets.  

Compensated Absences, as a Long Term Liability, increased in FY 2021 by approximately $14 

thousand, and is reflected as an Operating Expense. 

Non-Operating Income for FY 2021, reported on the accrual basis, totaled about $705 thousand,  

which included capital project reimbursements received from the BCWSA for the current 

treatment plant construction project. Interest Income decreased to about $38 thousand.  Tapping 

Fees for new customer connections accounted for approximately $340 thousand of the total. 

Non-Operating Expenses for FY 2021, reported on the accrual basis, totaled approximately $100 

thousand, which were related to interest on the Construction Loan.   

Income (Loss) Before Contributions in the amount of ($45,755) is the Operating Revenues plus 

net Non-Operating Income/Expense, minus the Operating Expenses. 

[$4,145,329 + $605,546 - $4,796,630 = ($45,755)] 

Capital Contributions, in the amount of about $352 thousand, are non-cash contributions of 

capital assets (assets paid for by a third-party then turned over to the Authority).  Typically, they 

are new sewer systems constructed in residential and commercial developments that are 

subsequently dedicated to the Authority. 

Net Position End of Year, for FY 2021, in the amount of $43,403,873, is calculated as Income 

(Loss) Before Contributions plus the Capital Contributions plus the Net Position Beginning of 

Year. ($45,755) + $352,544 + $43,097,084 = $43,403,873].  This figure is considered the true 

net worth of the Authority. The Net Position increased slightly (<1%) over FY 2020. 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS   (page 15) 

The Statement of Cash Flows for FY 2021 explains the sources and uses of cash throughout the 

fiscal year, on a cash basis.  Significant changes in Cash Flows, from FY 2020, were primarily 

related to accruals of Capital Expenditures related to completion of the Dryer Replacement 

Project. Net Cash from Operating Activities decreased by about 50% from FY 2020 to about 

$824 thousand. Other significant changes in FY 2021 Cash Flows from FY 2020 include 

Tapping Fee receipts, Capital Project Reimbursements, and changes in investment activities.  

-9-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  (pages 16-26) 

The Notes to Financial Statements specify significant information about the business of the 

Authority. 

CAPITAL ASSETS  (NOTE 4 / page 22) 

The Capital Assets of the Authority at the end of FY 2021 are about $40.3 million (net of 

depreciation), a decrease of about 3% from FY 2020, primarily due to depreciation of  capital  

assets.  The schedule below summarizes the Capital Assets.  More detailed information can be 

found on page 22 of the Financial Statements (NOTE 4). 

Beginning Net Ending

Balance Additions/ Balance

6/1/2020 Deletions 5/31/2021

Non-Depreciable Assets

Land 764,500$   -$  764,500$   

Construction in progress 2,365,448          (2,256,188)      109,260 

Other Capital Assets

Plant 40,063,603        2,073,689       42,137,292 

Equipment 2,005,372          41,537 2,046,909 

Sanitary Sewers 7,735,729          - 7,735,729 

Contributed Sewers 15,467,629        352,544 15,820,173 

Accumulated depreciation on capital assets (26,993,249)      (1,309,107)      (28,302,356) 

 Totals 41,409,032$      (1,097,525)$    40,311,507$   

DEBT 

At the end of FY 2021, the Authority had total long-term debt of about $4.6 million.  In 

November 2013 the Authority obtained a construction loan (Series 2013 Loan) of $10,000,000 to 

be used for plant improvement projects and refinancing of prior loans.  The remaining principal 

of that Loan was paid off in FY 2016. Authority then obtained a new construction loan (Series 

2016) with an initial principal amount of $7.99 million.  The loan is to be repaid over 10 years 

beginning in November 2016 at a fixed interest rate of 1.94%, with monthly payments of 

$73,304.   

The following is a summary of the Authority’s outstanding long-term debt as of May 31, 2021: 

Year of Amount of Average Final Balance Principal Interest Balance

Issue Original Issue Interest Rate Maturity 6/1/2020 Additions Payments Payments 5/31/2021

2016 7,990,000$    1.940% 2026 5,367,846$   -$   (782,448)$   99,667$     4,585,398$   
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FINANCIAL OUTLOOK 

The Financial Outlook for FY 2021-22 should again remain relatively stable.  There are no 

significant changes anticipated for both operational Revenues and Expenses.  Customer base is 

expected to increase gradually, due to recent increasing development activity.  Sewer usage rates 

were last increased in the second half of FY 2020. 

Inflation will continue to affect operational expenses.  Recently completed projects, however, 

will continue to help contain certain operating costs.  The FY 2013 project to bring natural gas to 

the site significantly reduced the treatment facility’s fuel costs.  The project to replace the 

Ultraviolet System, completed in FY 2012, has proven to significantly reduce electricity 

consumption. More recent construction projects have also implemented features designed to 

further reduce electric usage, including installing variable speed motors with automated and 

computerized controls, and installing more efficient lighting throughout the plant facility. In 

addition, the Authority continues to benefit from multi-year agreements for both electricity and 

natural gas generation, which will minimize increases in those significant expenses.  A collective 

bargaining agreement, negotiated in FY 2019 and in effect through FY 2024, should keep 

employee-related expenses reasonably stable. 

Phase II of the treatment plant expansion and upgrade project was completed in FY 2015.  The 

15% increase in permitted flow capacity created by the Phase II project was approved for use in 

early FY 2015.  This additional capacity is sufficient to provide for residential and commercial 

development activity for the foreseeable future.   

Construction of Phase III of the treatment plant expansion and upgrade project was completed in 

FY 2019. Final total cost of Phase III was about $7.1 million.  These projects have been funded 

by a combination of existing reserve funds, the Series 2016 Construction Loan, and BCWSA 

capital project contributions. The project to replace the Biosolids Dryer at the Treatment Plant 

was completed in FY 2021 with a total cost of about $2.5 million. The Authority is currently 

engaged in the design of a capital project to replace and relocate Sewage Pumping Station #4, 

with an estimated cost of $2 million. This project is anticipated to be under construction in FY 

2022. 

-11-
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ASSETS 

2021 2020

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 7,363,831$       3,832,224$       

Investments 354,000 3,595,873         

Interest receivable - 38,208 

Accounts receivable 486,392 457,109 

Total Current Assets 8,204,223         7,923,414         

Current Restricted Assets 

Escrow 199,552 204,511 

Total Restricted Assets 199,552 204,511 

Capital Assets (net of accumulated depreciation)

Land 764,500 764,500 

Construction in progress 109,260 2,365,448         

Plant and equipment 24,432,259       23,322,984       

Sanitary sewers 5,088,397         5,189,183         

Contributed sewers 9,917,091         9,766,917         

Total Capital Assets 40,311,507       41,409,032       

TOTAL ASSETS 48,715,282$     49,536,957$     
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LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION 

Current Liabilities (Payable from Current Assets)

Current maturities 797,763$          782,448$          

Accounts payable 80,098 437,152 

Accrued payroll 11,603 10,300 

Unearned revenue 314,573 313,651 

Total Payable from Current Assets 1,204,037         1,543,551         

Current Liabilities (Payable from Restricted Assets)

Escrow 199,552 204,511 

Total Payable from Restricted Assets 199,552 204,511 

Total Current Liabilities 1,403,589         1,748,062         

Long-Term Debt

Construction loan 3,787,635         4,585,398         

Compensated absences 120,185 106,413 

Total Long-Term Debt 3,907,820         4,691,811         

Total Liabilities 5,311,409         6,439,873         

Net Position

Net Investment in Capital Assets 36,523,872       36,823,634       

Unrestricted 6,880,001         6,273,450         

Total Net Position 43,403,873       43,097,084       

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION 48,715,282$     49,536,957$     

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. -13-
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2021 2020

Operating Revenues

Sewer rents 2,897,771$     2,806,649$     

Operating payment 1,199,686       1,474,760       

Miscellaneous 47,872 33,245 

    Total Operating Revenues 4,145,329       4,314,654       

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses - Schedule A 3,066,095       2,864,553       

General and administrative expenses - Schedule B 953,366          965,449          

Compensated absences 13,772 (10,758) 

Depreciation expense on assets reimbursed previously by BCWSA 763,397          689,999          

    Total Operating Expenses 4,796,630       4,509,243       

Net Operating Income (Loss) (651,301)        (194,589)         

Non-Operating Revenue (Expense)

Interest income 37,640 134,982          

Reimbursement for capital purchases 327,363          1,165,217       

Tapping fees 340,210          195,251          

Gain (loss) on replacement of capital assets - (9,700) 

Interest expense (99,667)          (112,224)         

     Net Non-Operating Revenue (Expense) 605,546          1,373,526       

Income (Loss) Before Contributions (45,755)          1,178,937       

Capital Contributions 352,544          2,000 

Change in Net Position 306,789          1,180,937       

Net Position Beginning of Year 43,097,084     41,916,147     

Net Position End of Year 43,403,873$   43,097,084$   

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. -14-
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2021 2020

Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from customers 4,116,968$     4,252,694$   

Cash paid to suppliers (1,992,689)      (1,274,402)      

Cash paid to employees (1,338,556)      (1,371,110)      

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 785,723 1,607,182       

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Capital expenditures (357,295)         (2,424,317)      

Retirement of debt (782,448)         (767,426)         

Capital project reimbursements 327,363 1,165,217       

Tapping fees 340,210 195,251 

Interest paid (99,667) (112,224)         

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities (571,837)         (1,943,499)      

Cash flows from investing activities:

Sales of investments 3,595,873       6,547,643       

Purchases of investments (354,000)         (3,595,873)      

Escrow deposits 87,124 32,105 

Escrow disbursements (92,083) (52,444) 

Interest received 75,848 175,316 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 3,312,762       3,106,747       

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3,526,648       2,770,430       

Cash and cash equivalents, at beginning of year 4,036,735       1,266,305       

Cash and cash equivalents, at end of year 7,563,383$     4,036,735$   

Cash and cash equivalents 7,363,831$     3,832,224$   

Restricted Escrow 199,552          204,511          

7,563,383$     4,036,735$     

Reconciliation of Net Income (Loss) to Net Cash

Provided by (Used In) Operating Activities

Operating income (loss) (651,301)$   (194,589)$   

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net

cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation expense 1,807,364       1,657,255       

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (29,283) (74,371) 

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (357,054)         216,810 

Increase (decrease) in payroll and payroll tax payable 1,303 425 

Increase (decrease) in unearned revenue 922 12,411 

Increase (decrease) in compensated absences 13,772 (10,759) 

Total adjustments 1,437,024       1,801,771       

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 785,723$   1,607,182$   

Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities:

The Authority recognized contributed sewer lines in the amount of  $352,544

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. -15-
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May 31, 2021 

NOTE 1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  

Reporting Entity:  The Authority is a municipal corporation existing and operating 

under the Municipal Authorities Act of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.  The 

accompanying financial statements present the primary government.  In evaluating 

the Authority (the primary government) as a reporting entity, all potential component 

units that may or may not fall within the financial accountability of the Authority 

have been addressed.  Financial accountability is present if the Authority appoints a 

voting majority of a component unit’s governing body and has the ability to impose 

its will on the organization or if there is a potential for the organization to provide 

specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the Authority. 

Based on the aforementioned criteria, there were no entities which were considered 

for inclusion in the reporting entity. 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation: 

Basis of Accounting:  The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on 

the accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues are recognized when earned and 

expenditures are recognized when incurred. 

Revenue Recognition:  The Authority distinguishes between operating revenues and 

expenses from nonoperating items.  Operating revenues and expenses generally 

result from providing services in connection with the Authority’s ongoing operation. 

All revenue and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating 

revenues and expenses. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the 

Authority’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they 

are needed. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents:  The Authority’s cash and cash equivalents are 

considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments with 

maturities within three months or less from the fiscal year end. 

Restricted Assets:  The Authority acts in a custodial capacity with respect to monies 

deposited with it by developers and others.  These monies are held by the Authority 

and used to pay fees incurred on behalf of a specific project.  Any unused deposits 

are returned to the developer upon completion of the project.  None of the monies 

received from or expended on behalf of the developers are recorded in the revenues 

or expenses of the Authority.  At May 31, 2021, $199,552 represents the balance of 

these monies held in escrow. 

-16-
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NOTE 1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  (Continued) 

Capital Assets:  Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and sewer 

system assets, are defined by the Authority as assets with an initial, individual cost of 

more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years.  Such assets are 

recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. 

Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of 

donation. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or 

materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.  Major outlays for capital assets and 

improvements are capitalized as projects when constructed.  Capital assets are 

depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Assets Years 

Plant 15-40 years

Equipment 5-40 years

Sanitary sewers 40-80 years

Contributed sewers 40-80 years

Depreciation is shown in operating expense, general and operating expense and 

depreciation expense on assets reimbursed previously by BCWSA. BCWSA 

reimburses the Authority a percentage for capital outlay. 

Contributions in Aid of Construction:  Sewer systems and equipment, which are 

constructed and installed by developers in new housing developments within the 

Township, are generally dedicated to the Authority upon completion of each section 

of the development.  Upon dedication, the estimated cost to construct such property 

is recorded by the Authority as an increase to property, plant and equipment and as 

an increase to contributions in aid of construction. 

Net Position:  Net position includes the various net earnings from operating and 

nonoperating revenues, expenses and contributions of capital.  Net position is classified 

in the following three components:  net investment in capital assets; restricted for 

capital activity and debt services; and unrestricted net position.  Net investment in 

capital assets consists of all capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced 

by outstanding debt that is attributable to the acquisition, construction and improvement 

of those assets; debt related to unspent proceeds or other restricted cash and 

investments is excluded from the determination.  Restricted assets include developer 

deposits held by the Authority to be used to pay costs of certain engineering, legal, and 

inspection work required by the Authority.  Unrestricted are amounts that do not meet 

the definitions above and are available for the Authority operations. 
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CHALFONT-NEW BRITAIN TOWNSHIP JOINT SEWAGE AUTHORITY 

Notes to Financial Statements 

May 31, 2021 

NOTE 1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  (Continued) 

Use of Estimates:  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 

generally accepted accounting principles require management to make estimates and 

assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.  Accordingly, 

actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources:  In addition to assets, the statement of 

financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of 

resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, 

represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will 

not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.  The 

Authority does not have any items that qualify for reporting in this category. 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a 

separate section for deferred inflows of resources.  This separate financial statement 

element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that 

applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources 

(revenue) until that time.  The Authority does not have any items that qualify for 

reporting in this category.   

Unearned Revenue: Unearned revenues represent amounts received in advance. 

Compensated Absences:  Employees of the Authority are entitled to accrue unused 

sick leave and vacation time, from one calendar year to the next, up to a maximum 

of 600 hours of sick time and 40 hours of vacation time.  At retirement an employee 

may receive up to 5% of their individual salary as a cash payout. 

Vacation pay is granted to employees depending on length of service and other 

factors. Employees are encouraged to take all of their vacation time in the year 

earned. Long-term vacation and sick pay obligation for the year ended May 31, 2021 

is $120,185. 

Comparative Information:  The financial statements include certain prior year 

comparative information.  Such information does not include sufficient detail to 

constitute a presentation in conformity with accounting policies generally accepted in 

the United States of America, because the management discussion and analysis is 

presented for two years only.  Accordingly, such prior year information should be read 

in conjunction with the Authority’s financial statements for the year ended 

May 31, 2020, from which the comparative information was derived. 
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CHALFONT-NEW BRITAIN TOWNSHIP JOINT SEWAGE AUTHORITY 

Notes to Financial Statements 

May 31, 2021 

NOTE 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  (Continued) 

Subsequent Events: The Authority has evaluated events and transactions for 

potential recognition or disclosure in the financial statements through the date of this 

report, which is the date the statements were available for release.  No subsequent 

events have been recognized or disclosed. 

New Accounting Pronouncements:  GASB Codification 87, Leases: GASB 87 

substantially changes current accounting procedures regarding lease accounting and 

offers specific accounting guidance for lessees, lessors and sale-leaseback 

transactions. GASB 87 establishes a right-of-use (“ROU”) model that requires 

lessees to record a ROU asset and lease liability in the statement of financial position 

for all leases with terms longer than 12 months (the standard may optionally be 

applied to leases with term of 12 months or less). Leases will be classified as either 

finance leases or operating leases depending on the characteristics of the lease; 

consistent with current accounting procedures, the recognition, measurement and 

presentation of expenses and cash flows arising from the lease will depend on the 

lease classification. This Statement is expected to have an implementation date for 

fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021. 

NOTE 2. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 

Annual budgets are adopted on a cash basis of accounting, which is not consistent 

with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP).  The budget and all 

transactions are presented in accordance with the Authority’s method (cash basis) in 

the Statement of Revenues and Expenses Compared to Budget to provide a 

meaningful comparison of actual results with the budget.  The major differences 

between the cash basis of accounting and GAAP are that revenues are recorded when 

received in cash as opposed to when susceptible to accrual.  Expenditures are 

recorded when paid as opposed to when the liability is incurred, except for interest 

on general long term obligations, which is recorded when due.  Debt principal 

payments and capitalized fixed assets are recorded on the balance sheet instead of in 

expenditures. 

The Authority follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected 

in the financial statements: 

1. During April a preliminary budget is adopted.

2. In June or July the final budget is adopted.

3. All budget revisions require the approval of the Authority.

4. Budgetary control is maintained at the account level.

5. The budget is adopted on the cash basis of accounting.  All appropriations

lapse at year end.
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CHALFONT-NEW BRITAIN TOWNSHIP JOINT SEWAGE AUTHORITY 

Notes to Financial Statements 

May 31, 2021 

NOTE 3. Cash and Investments 

With the exception of Pension Trust Funds, state law allows the Authority to invest 

in obligations of the United States of America, the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, 

or any agency or instrumentality of either, which are secured by the full faith and 

credit of such entity.  The law also allows for the Authority to invest in certificates 

of deposit of banks, savings and loans, and savings banks both within and outside 

the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, provided such amounts are insured by the 

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or other like insurance, and that 

deposits in excess of such insurance are collateralized by the depository.  The state 

also imposes limitations with respect to the amount of investment in certificates of 

deposit to the extent that such deposits may not exceed 20% of a bank’s total capital 

surplus or 20% of a savings and loans or savings bank’s assets, net of its liabilities. 

The Authority may also invest in shares of registered investment companies, 

provided that investments of the Authority are authorized investments, as noted 

above. 

The law provides that the Authority’s Pension Trust Funds may invest in any form or 

type of investment, financial instrument, or financial transaction if determined by the 

Authority to be prudent. 

Investments for the Authority are reported at fair value.  

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits.  In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the 

event of a bank failure, the Authority’s deposits may not be returned to it.  The 

Authority’s policy is to require their banking institution to provide a letter stating that 

they follow the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Act 72, where all funds in excess of 

federal depository insurance limits held by the bank are collateralized in public funds 

secured on a pooled basis.  At year-end, the bank balance was $7,563,383, including 

restricted cash escrows.  Of the bank balance, $1,417,190 was exposed to custodial 

credit risk because it is uninsured and collateralized with securities held by the pledging 

institution’s trust department or agent, but not in the Authority’s name.   

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments.  For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event 

of a failure of the counterparty, the Authority will not be able to recover the value of its 

investments or collateral securities that are in possession of an outside party.  The risks 

of default are eliminated due to the constraints imposed upon allowable investment 

instruments through state limitations as discussed above. 
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CHALFONT-NEW BRITAIN TOWNSHIP JOINT SEWAGE AUTHORITY 

Notes to Financial Statements 

May 31, 2021 

NOTE 3. Cash and Investments  (Continued) 

Investment Pool - The Township has carrying deposits in external investment pools, 

held with PLGIT Bank and PA Treasury Invest.  These deposits are considered cash 

equivalents because of their short maturity dates and are included in the carrying 

amount of deposits disclosed above.  These deposits are not subject to custodial credit 

risk because they are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry 

form.  The investment in the pool is the same as the value of the pool shares and is 

reported at amortized cost, which approximates fair value.  Pool amounts are invested 

directly in a portfolio of securities, which are held by a third-party custodian.  All 

investments in an external investment pool that is not SEC registered are subject to 

oversight by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.  The Township can withdraw funds 

from the external investment pool without limitation or fees upon adequate notice.  The 

investment pool was rated AAAm by Standard & Poor’s and has average maturities of 

less than 30 days.  The Investment Pool operates in accordance with appropriate state 

laws and regulations. 

Interest Rate Risk.  This is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect 

the fair market value of an investment.  The Authority does not have a formal 

investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing its 

exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. 

Credit Risk.  This is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will 

not fulfill its obligations.  State law limits the investment of governmental funds as 

described above.  The Authority does not have a formal investment policy for credit 

risk.  The government’s investments in the external investment pool were rated AAAm 

by Standard & Poor’s. 

Concentration of Credit Risk.  This is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a 

government’s investment in a single issuer.  The concentration of credit risk in 

investments of external investment pools is not required to be disclosed. 

Fair Value Measurements - The Authority categorizes its fair value measurements 

within the hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles.  The 

hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset.  

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs 

that include quoted prices for similar assets in active markets and inputs that are 

observable for the asset, either directly, or indirectly, for substantially the full term of 

the financial instrument.  Fair values of these instruments are estimated using pricing 

models, quoted pricing models, quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics, 

or discounted cash flows; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs, which are 

typically based on an entity’s own assumptions, as there is little, if any, related market 

activity.   
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CHALFONT-NEW BRITAIN TOWNSHIP JOINT SEWAGE AUTHORITY 

Notes to Financial Statements 

May 31, 2021 

NOTE 3. Cash and Investments  (Continued) 

The Authority’s pooled investments are considered a recurring fair value measurements 

of Level 2.  At year-end, the Authority’s pooled cash and investment balances were 

as follows: 

         Investments Maturity Dates Amount <1 year 1-5 years

 External Pooled Investments 2021 5,693,027$    5,693,027$   -$     

 Term Deposits 2021 200,000         200,000        - 

 Certificate of Deposit 2021 154,000         154,000        - 

Total 6,047,027$    6,047,027$   -$     

NOTE 4. Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity for the year ended May 31, 2021 was as follows: 

Beginning Ending

Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land 764,500$   -$  -$  764,500$   

Construction in progress 2,365,448      283,452         (2,539,640)   109,260 

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 3,129,948      283,452         (2,539,640)   873,760 

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Plant 40,063,603    2,539,640      (465,951)      42,137,292     

Equipment 2,005,372      73,843           (32,306)        2,046,909       

Sanitary sewers 7,735,729      - - 7,735,729       

Contributed sewers 15,467,629    352,544         - 15,820,173 

Total capital assets, being depreciated 65,272,333    2,966,027      (498,257)      67,740,103     

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Plant 17,239,947    1,423,845      (465,951)      18,197,841     

Equipment 1,506,044      80,363           (32,306)        1,554,101       

Sanitary sewers 2,546,546      100,786         - 2,647,332 

Contributed sewers 5,700,712      202,370         - 5,903,082 

Total accumulated depreciation 26,993,249    1,807,364      (498,257)      28,302,356     

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 38,279,084    1,158,663      - 39,437,747 

All capital assets, net 41,409,032$  1,442,115$    (2,539,640)$ 40,311,507$   
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CHALFONT-NEW BRITAIN TOWNSHIP JOINT SEWAGE AUTHORITY 

Notes to Financial Statements 

May 31, 2021 

NOTE 5. Deferred Compensation Plan/Payable 

The Authority offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in 

accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457.  The plan, available to all 

Authority employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future 

years.  The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, 

retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. 

Participants’ rights under the plan are equal to the fair market value of the deferred 

account for each participant. 

There are no assets accumulated in the plan that meet the criteria for recognition in 

accordance with GASBS No. 73. 

NOTE 6. Money Purchase Pension Plan 

The Authority sponsors a money purchase plan under which substantially all 

employees are covered.  Following are details of the plan.  There are no assets 

accumulated in the trust that meet the criteria for recognition in accordance with 

GASBS No. 73. 

Chalfont-New Britain Township Joint Sewage Authority Pension Trust 

Plan Description 

The Authority sponsors a money purchase plan to provide pension benefits for 

employees of the Authority.  The plan covers all full-time employees and requires 

1,000 hours of service for eligibility.  

As required by the plan document, the employer contributes 8.0% of eligible 

compensation and covered employees contribute 2.5% of their salary to the pension 

trust.  Employees are allowed to voluntarily contribute an additional 7.5% of eligible 

compensation. 
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CHALFONT-NEW BRITAIN TOWNSHIP JOINT SEWAGE AUTHORITY 

Notes to Financial Statements 

May 31, 2021 

NOTE 6. Money Purchase Pension Plan  (Continued) 

The Pension Trust provides retirement benefits, as well as, death and disability 

benefits.  All benefits vest after 7 years of credited service.  Married employees who 

retire at or after age 60 with 10 years of credited service are entitled to a 50% joint 

and survivor annuity.  Members who are not married are entitled to a life annuity. 

Members may elect not to take the annuities and choose to take one of the following 

forms of payment: 

a) A single lump sum payment.

b) The purchase of a different form of annuity.

c) Equal installments over a period of not more than the member’s or the

beneficiary’s life expectancy at the time of distribution.

If an employee terminates employment before 7 years of credited service for reasons 

other than death, disability, or retirement, he or she is entitled to only the “vested 

percentage” of the account balance; therefore, the accumulated employee 

contributions plus related investment earnings are refunded to the employee upon 

termination.  If an employee dies before 7 years of credited service, the beneficiary 

will be entitled to 100% of the members account balance. 

The Authority’s total covered payroll for the year ended May 31, 2021 was 

$1,274,037 on the cash basis of accounting, which is the basis used to calculate the 

pension contributions.  The Authority has made the necessary contribution of 

$101,923 (8.0% of covered payroll). 

NOTE 7. Post-Retirement Benefits 

In accordance with the Union Labor Contract the Authority implemented a single 

employer defined benefit plan.  Plan benefits may be amended through Union Labor 

Contracts.  The plan does not issue a stand-alone financial report. 

The Authority provides a health care bridge for certain employees by continuing to 

pay the same premium costs provided to regular full-time active employees for those 

employees who retire with 25 years of continuous active service, for a period not to 

exceed 3 years should such employee retire before he is eligible for Medicare.  This 

period shall be a bridge between early retirement eligibility and Medicare eligibility.  

The coverage will be funded on a pay-as-you-go basis.  The expense for post retiree 

health care costs for the year ended May 31, 2021 was $0.  There were no retirees 

receiving this benefit.  There are no employee contributions required. 
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CHALFONT-NEW BRITAIN TOWNSHIP JOINT SEWAGE AUTHORITY 

Notes to Financial Statements 

May 31, 2021 

NOTE 7. Post-Retirement Benefits  (Continued) 

The Authority has elected to use the alternative measurement method to value the 

liability.  The financial statements do not reflect the long-term liability of $2,679 due 

to the immateriality of the amount. 

NOTE 8. Agreements with Other Municipalities 

The Authority has agreements with other municipalities for the transportation and 

treatment of sanitary wastes. 

With Montgomery Township Municipal Sewer Authority, Hatfield Township 

Municipal Authority (HTMA), and Warrington Township connections are billed at 

the same rate as the connections in the Authority’s service area. 

In October 2012, negotiation of a new Operating Agreement between the Authority 

and the BCWSA was finalized that outlined new terms and conditions for capacity, 

treatment, and cost sharing of the Authority’s treatment facility. 

NOTE 9. Risk Management and Contingencies 

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, 

and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the 

Authority carries commercial insurance.  

In the normal course of business, there are various relatively minor claims and suits 

pending against the Authority, none of which materially affect the financial position 

of the Authority.  At the present time, there are no unasserted claims or significant 

litigation matters pending. 

The global pandemic due to the spread of the COVID-19 coronavirus continued 

subsequent to year end. As a result, economic uncertainties have arisen that could 

negatively impact the Authority’s finances including investment income.  The 

potential impact is unknown at this time. 
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CHALFONT-NEW BRITAIN TOWNSHIP JOINT SEWAGE AUTHORITY 

Notes to Financial Statements 

May 31, 2021 

NOTE 10. Debt 

In November 2016, the Authority obtained a $7,990,000 loan (series 2016 loan) to 

currently refund the series 2013.  The loan is to be repaid over 120 months beginning 

in December 2016 at a fixed interest rate of 1.94%.  The monthly payments are 

$73,304.  The refunding resulted in a savings of approximately $27,000 per year. 

Long-term liability activity for the year ended May 31, 2021 was as follows: 

Beginning Ending Due Within

Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

Construction loan 2016 5,367,846$    -$   (782,448)$    4,585,398$     797,763$     

Compensated absences 106,413 13,772 - 120,185 - 

Business-type activities

       Long-Term Liabilities 5,474,259$    13,772$     (782,448)$     4,705,583$     797,763$     

Maturities are based on required minimum payments with no further draw-downs 

included in the calculation. 

Debt service for the construction loan is funded primarily from charges for services.  

Any liabilities for compensated absences are generally liquidated by the Authority’s 

activities.  Future maturities as of May 31, 2021 are as follows: 

Year Ending

31-May Principal Interest

2022 797,763$   81,888$   

2023 813,378         66,273 

2024 829,298         50,353 

2025 845,531         34,120 

2026 862,081         17,570 

2027 437,347         2,478 

4,585,398$    252,682$   
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CHALFONT-NEW BRITAIN TOWNSHIP JOINT SEWAGE AUTHORITY 

Schedule A:  Operating Expenses 

For the Years Ended May 31, 2021 and 2020 

2021 2020

Operating Expenses

Sanitary Sewers

Salaries and wages 239,199$  240,850$  

Education and training 630 849 

Materials and supplies 19,856 19,221 

Chemicals 15,507 18,390 

Maintenance 29,685 30,006 

Alarm system 1,783 2,484 

Power-pump station 12,475 10,625 

PA one call 1,547 1,278 

Industrial pretreatment 582 1,164 

Engineering 13,153 1,910 

Legal - 3,286 

Miscellaneous customer service 15 - 

Depreciation expense 341,355 330,726 

 Total Sanitary Sewers 675,787 660,789 

Sewage Disposal

Salaries and wages 806,690 839,134 

Education and training 974 1,376 

Materials and supplies 91,070 82,467 

Polymer 3,658 3,539 

Ferric chloride 28,933 20,093 

Laboratory 14,709 9,201 

Outside laboratory 18,294 15,477 

Equipment maintenance/repair 252,994 109,117 

Electrical repair 15,558 17,325 

Ground maintenance 12,162 8,753 

Fuel oil 11,468 14,603 

Power 237,620 212,360 

Natural gas 51,477 41,232 

Engineering 9,326 166 

Permits 5,249 4,386 

Alarm system - - 

Sludge disposal 30,618 84,750 

Chemicals 103,365 103,255 

Depreciation expense 696,143 636,530 

 Total Sewage Disposal 2,390,308 2,203,764 

 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 3,066,095$     2,864,553$  
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CHALFONT-NEW BRITAIN TOWNSHIP JOINT SEWAGE AUTHORITY 

Schedule B: General and Administrative Expenses 

For the Years Ended May 31, 2021 and 2020 

2021 2020

Administrative Expenses

Salaries and wages 293,970$   291,550$   

Insurance - plant/equipment 121,886        117,953        

Insurance - medical 239,633        247,638        

PA unemployment 4,320 4,829 

Pension 101,923        102,416        

Social security 100,395        103,260        

Legal 12,823          16,562 

Audit 12,290          12,040 

Administrative 9,535 9,311 

Engineering 4,500 6,000 

Materials and supplies 6,703 6,331 

Postage 10,760          11,497 

Office equipment 16,081          21,037 

Telephone 7,945 9,861 

Maintenance 3,112 3,061 

Education and training 1,021 2,103 

Depreciation expense 6,469 - 

 Total  Administrative Expenses 953,366$   965,449$   
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DCED-CLGS-04

Cash and cash equivalents 7,363,831$

Investments 354,000

Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles) 486,392

Lease rental payments receivable (Financing authorities, only)

Due from other governments

Inventories

Prepaids

Restricted current assets:

Cash or cash equivalents 199,552

Investments

Lease rental payments receivable (Financing authorities, only)

Intergovernmental receivables

Other current assets

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 8,403,775$

Restricted non-current assets:

Investments

Lease rental payments receivable (Financing authorities, only)

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land 764,500

Construction in progress 109,260

Capital assets net of accumulated depreciation:

Buildings and system 23,939,451

Improvements other than buildings

Furnishings, machinery and equipment 492,808

Infrastructure 15,005,488

Lease rental payments receivable (Financing authorities, only)

Other non-current assets

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 40,311,507$

TOTAL ASSETS 48,715,282$

Deferred amount of debt refundings

Deferrals related to pensions

Other deferred outflows of resources

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 48,715,282$

CHALFONT NEW BRITAIN TOWNSHIP JOINT SEWAGE AUTHORITY 090848

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING 2021

CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
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Accounts payable 80,098$

Accrued payroll and withholdings 11,603

Accrued interest payable

Due to other governments

Unearned revenue 314,573

Funds held as fiduciary

Debt due within one year 797,763

Other current liabilities 199,552

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,403,589$

Debt due in more than one year 3,787,635$

Net pension liabilities

Other non-current liabilities 120,185

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,907,820$

TOTAL LIABILITIES 5,311,409$

Deferred amount of debt refundings

Deferrals related to pensions

Other deferred Inflows of resources

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 5,311,409$

Net investment in capital assets 36,523,872$

Restricted

Unrestricted 6,880,001

TOTAL NET POSITION 43,403,873$

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION 48,715,282$

CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION
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Charges for service 4,097,457$

Lease rental income (Financing authorities, only)

Operating grants:

Federal

State

Local

Other

Contributions

Interest income

Assessment revenue*

Payments in lieu of assessments*

Program income*

Other operating revenue 47,872

TOTAL SEWER OPERATING REVENUES 4,145,329$

Administrative 946,897$

Contracted services 71,391

Personnel services 1,047,493

Supplies and materials 277,098

Repairs and maintenance 310,399

Utilities 313,040

Other services and charges 9,176

Depreciation and amortization 1,807,364

Fundraising*

Program services*

Other operating expenses 13,772

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 4,796,630$

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (651,301)$

Nonoperating grants:

Federal

State

Local

Other

Investment earnings 37,640

Interest expense (99,667)

Gain / (loss) on sale of assets -

Other financing sources / (uses)

Other nonoperating revenues 667,573

Other nonoperating (expenses)

Debt service principal and interest (expense)**

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 605,546$

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 352,544$

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 306,789

NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR 43,097,084

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR 43,403,873

*Business/Neighborhood Improvement Districts

**See the Annual Report of Municipal Authorities and Neighborhood Improvement Districts Tip Sheet available from your Start Page.

OPERATING EXPENSES

CHALFONT NEW BRITAIN TOWNSHIP JOINT SEWAGE AUTHORITY 090848

Sewer

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING 2021

OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
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DCED-CLGS-04

Purpose issuance

Type

Issue

Year

(YYYY)

Maturity

Year

(YYYY)

Original Amount of

issue

Outstanding

Beginning of Year

Principal incurred

This Year

Principal Paid

This Year

Current Year

Accretion on

Compound

interest Bonds

Outstanding at Year

End

Capital Impr Note 2016 2026 7,990,000$ 5,367,846$ -$ 782,448$ -$ $ 4,585,398

$ 4,585,398

$ 4,585,398

Plus (Less) Unamortized Premium (Discount)

NET DEBT

CHALFONT NEW BRITAIN TOWNSHIP JOINT SEWAGE AUTHORITY 090848

DEBT STATEMENT
FISCAL YEAR ENDING 2021

General Obligation Bonds and Notes

Total Bonds and Notes Outstanding

Capitalized Lease Obligations
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